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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
2012 STATE OF OHIO SINGLE AUDIT

AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

There are 10 separate opinion units included in the basic financial statements of the State of Ohio for the
fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2012. Four of the 10 opinion units are audited entirely or in part by
independent accounting firms under contract with the Auditor of State. The remaining six opinion unit
audits are performed by audit staff of the Auditor of State. This division of responsibility is described on
page 1 in our Independent Accountants’ Report.

We audited the basic financial statements of the State of Ohio as of and for the period ended June 30,
2012, following auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
for financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, and the provisions of Office of Management
and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
The objective of our audit was to express our opinion concerning whether the financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of Ohio, and the results of its
operations, and cash flows of the proprietary and similar trust funds, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We issued unqualified opinions on the 10
opinion units.

In addition to our opinions on the basic financial statements, we issued an Independent Accountants’
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Required by
Government Auditing Standards. The letter for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, included one
material weakness and one significant deficiency from one state agency. These comments are
summarized on page 181 of this report.

AUDIT RESPONSIBILITIES AND REPORTING UNDER OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Single Audit Act requires an annual audit of the State’s federal financial assistance programs. The
specific audit and reporting requirements are set forth in U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular
A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. The Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) reports federal expenditures for each federal financial
assistance program by federal agency, as identified by the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) number. As detailed on pages 141 through 156, the State administered 383 federal programs
from 25 Federal agencies with total federal expenditures of $24.7 billion in fiscal year 2012. Of the $24.7
billion, the State disbursed $1.6 billion in funding as a result of the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act (ARRA) of 2009. This compares to $5.5 billion of ARRA funds disbursed in FY 2011 and $6.2 billion
disbursed in FY 2010.

The Schedule is used for identifying Type A and Type B programs. For fiscal year 2012, Type A federal
programs for the State of Ohio were those programs with annual federal expenditures exceeding $37
million. There were 34 programs at or above this amount. Type B programs were those programs with
annual federal expenditures exceeding $7.4 million, but less than $37 million. There were 33 programs
meeting the criteria for Type B programs. The identification of Type A and B programs is utilized for
determining which federal programs will be tested in detail for compliance with federal laws and
regulations. Under Circular A-133, the auditor uses a risk-based approach to testing. Once programs are
classified as Type A or B, they are then assessed as either high or low risk programs. All high-risk Type
A programs are considered major programs and are tested in detail for compliance with federal
regulations. Low-risk Type A programs must be tested at least once every three years. One high-risk
Type B program then is selected for testing to replace each low-risk Type A program not required to be
tested. The State of Ohio Single Audit included the testing of 29 Type A programs and five high-risk Type
B programs as major programs in fiscal year 2012.



State of Ohio
FY 12 State Single Audit
Executive Summary

Included in the Schedule are monies paid by the Ohio Department of Job & Family Services to their
subrecipient county agencies to administer applicable portions of the Medicaid, Children’s Health
Insurance Program, TANF, Foster Care, Adoption Assistance, Social Services Block Grant, Child Care
Cluster, Child Support Enforcement, and SNAP federal programs. The related county federal schedules
will report expenditures for all disbursements made at the county level. However, for the Medicaid,
Children’s Health Insurance Program, TANF (OWF portion), Adoption Assistance, Child Care Cluster, and
SNAP federal programs, the counties performed only limited functions and maintained case records to
support benefits paid by the Ohio Department of Job & Family Services related to these programs. We
selected five of 88 counties and performed testing related to the specific county level activities for these
five major programs. The results of our county level audit procedures are included in the Schedule of
Findings and Questioned Costs.

The State’s colleges and universities’ federal financial assistance, which was approximately $4 billion in
fiscal year 2012, is excluded from the State’s Schedule although their financial activities are included in
the State’s financial statements (Discretely Presented Component Units). The State's colleges and
universities included in the State’s reporting entity are subject to separate audits under OMB Circular A-
133.

In accordance with A-133, we issued an Independent Accountants’ Report on Compliance with
Requirements Applicable to Each Major Federal Program and Internal Control Over Compliance in
Accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Our report on compliance includes our opinion on compliance with
the 34 major federal financial assistance programs and describes instances of noncompliance with
Federal requirements we detected that require reporting per Circular A-133. This report also describes
any material weaknesses or significant deficiencies we identified related to controls used to administer
Federal financial assistance programs. Due to the significance of two of our audit findings, we qualified
our opinion on compliance related to Subrecipient Monitoring applicable to its Capitalization Grants for
Clean Water State Revolving Funds and Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water Revolving Funds
programs and Matching and Level of Effort applicable to its Highway Safety Cluster program.

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

The fiscal year 2012 Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs contains 37 findings of which 24 were
repeated from the fiscal year 2011 State of Ohio Single Audit. Two of these findings, as summarized on
page 180, also relate to our Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Required by Government Auditing Standards. Both comments relate to the computer
systems at the Department of Job & Family Services.

The 37 A-133 findings, beginning on page 183, relate to the federal programs at 11 state agencies. Of
these federal findings, many of which were rated as more than one type, 12 resulted in questioned costs
(some also included control deficiencies), 16 were noncompliance (some also included control
deficiencies), 22 were identified as material weaknesses, and 10 were significant deficiencies. Of the 12
findings with questioned costs, 10 questioned amounts totaling more than $252,000. Amounts could not
be determined for the other two questioned cost findings.

The schedule below identifies the number of reportable items included in the State of Ohio Single Audit,
by state agency, from fiscal year 2007 through 2012.



State of Ohio
FY 12 State Single Audit
Executive Summary

State Agency 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Ohio Dept. of Job & Family Services 20 28 27 26 30 34
Ohio Department of Education 4 7 2 2 2 5
Ohio Department of Health 1 4 7 4 6 3
Ohio Department of Development 1 4 1 0 1 2
Ohio Dept. of Alcohol & Drug Addiction 2 3 2 0 0 0
Ohio Dept. of Developmental Disabilities 0 2 1 0 0 0
Ohio Department of Mental Health 1 2 2 1 1 1
Ohio Rehabilitation Services Commission 2 2 0 1 2 0
Ohio Department of Public Safety 3 1 N/A 0 4 3
Ohio Office of Budget and Management 0 1 0 0 4 1
Ohio Administrative Knowledge System 0 1 1 0 4 1
Ohio Dept. of Transportation 1 1 0 3 1 2
Other State Agencies 2 3 1 3 0 1
Total 37 59 44 40 55 53

In addition to the comments included in this report, the State of Ohio and each state agency may receive
a management letter which would include internal control and compliance deficiencies that do not rise to
the level required for inclusion in this report. Those management letters are not part of this report.
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT

The Honorable John Kasich, Governor
State of Ohio
Columbus, Ohio

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Ohio (the State), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012,
which collectively comprise the State’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the State’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of
the following organizations:

Primary Government: Office of the Auditor of State; Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and
Industrial Commission of Ohio; Office of Financial Incentives; State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio;
Treasurer of State Lease Revenue Bonds; and Tuition Trust Authority.

Blended Component Units: Ohio Building Authority and State Highway Patrol Retirement System.

Discretely Presented Component Units: Bowling Green State University; Central State University;
Cleveland State University; Kent State University; Miami University; Ohio State University; Ohio
University; Shawnee State University; University of Akron; University of Cincinnati; University of Toledo;
Wright State University; Youngstown State University; Cincinnati State Community College; Clark State
Community College; Columbus State Community College; Edison State Community College; Northwest
State Community College; Owens State Community College; Southern State Community College; Terra
State Community College; Washington State Community College; Ohio Capital Fund; and Ohio Water
Development Authority.

In addition, we did not audit the financial statements of the Public Employees Retirement System, Police
and Fire Pension Fund, State Teachers Retirement System, and School Employees Retirement System,
whose assets are held by the Treasurer of State and are included as part of the State’s Aggregate
Remaining Fund Information.

These financial statements reflect the following percentages of total assets and revenues or additions of
the indicated opinion units:

Opinion Unit Percent of Opinion Percent of Opinion
Unit's Total Assets Unit's Total Revenues
/ Additions

Governmental Activities 2% 1%

Business-Type Activities 95% 38%
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units 98% 94%
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information 95% 15%
Workers’ Compensation 100% 100%

88 East Broad Street, Tenth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-3402 or 800-443-9275 Fax: 614-728-7199

www.ohioauditor.gov



The Honorable John Kasich, Governor
Independent Accountant’'s Report
Page 2

Those financial statements listed above were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for these independently
audited organizations, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Comptroller General of the
United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to reasonably assure whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our
audit and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, business-type activities, aggregate discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Ohio, as of June 30, 2012, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, and the respective budgetary
comparisons for the General and major special revenue funds for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we are issuing our report dated March 21, 2013
under separate cover with the State of Ohio Single Audit report, on our consideration of the State’s
internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. While we did not opine on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance, that report describes the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing. That report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. You should read it in
conjunction with this report in assessing the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to
include Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Required Supplementary Information’s
Infrastructure Assets Accounted for Using the Modified Approach, as listed in the table of contents, to
supplement the basic financial statements. Although this information is not part of the basic financial
statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any other assurance.



The Honorable John Kasich, Governor
Independent Accountant’'s Report
Page 3

We conducted our audit to opine on the financial statements that collectively comprise the State’s basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards by Federal Agency and Supplementary Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards by
Federal Agency and Federal Program (Schedules) provide additional information required by the U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Schedules are
management’s responsibility, and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. We subjected the Schedules to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, this information is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

/

Dave Yost
Auditor of State

March 21, 2013
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State of Ohio

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
(Unaudited)

Introduction

This section of the State of Ohio’s annual financial report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the
State’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The management’s discussion and
analysis section should be read in conjunction with the preceding transmittal letter and the State’s financial state-
ments, which follow.

Financial Highlights

Government-wide Financial Statements

During fiscal year 2012, net assets of the State’s primary government increased by $2.32 billion and ended fiscal
year 2012 with a balance of $25.17 billion. Net assets of the State’s component units increased by $885.8 million,
after prior year restatements, and ended fiscal year 2012 with a balance of $14.37 billion. Additional discussion of
the State’'s government-wide balances and activities, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, can be found
beginning on page 9.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of $11.32 billion that was comprised of $173.7
million in nonspendable, $8.51 billion restricted for specific purposes, $1.39 billion committed, $1.67 billion in as-
signed, and a $416.2 million deficit in unassigned. Nonspendable includes amounts for inventories, the noncur-
rent portion of loans receivables, prepaids, and advances to local governments. The purposes of the restricted,
committed, and assigned fund balances are primary, secondary and other education, higher education support,
public assistance and Medicaid, health and human services, justice and public protection, environmental protec-
tion and natural resources, transportation, general government, community and economic development, capital
outlay and debt service. The balances and activities of the State’s governmental funds are discussed further be-
ginning on page 13.

As of June 30, 2012, the General Fund’s fund balance was approximately $3.19 billion, including $87 million in
nonspendable, $1.03 billion in restricted, $824.6 million in committed, $1.67 billion in assigned, and a $415.7 mil-
lion deficit in unassigned, as detailed in NOTE 17. The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $968 million
(exclusive of a $1.6 million decrease in inventories) or 43.5 percent during fiscal year 2012. The balances and
activities of the General Fund are discussed further beginning on page 13.

Proprietary funds reported net assets of $6.57 billion, as of June 30, 2012, an increase of $2.49 billion since June
30, 2011. This increase is largely due to the net increase of $2.05 billion in the Workers’ Compensation Fund.
The balances and activities of the proprietary funds are discussed further beginning on page 15.

Capital Assets

The carrying amount of capital assets for the State’s primary government increased to $25.76 billion at June 30,
2012. The majority of the $35.7 million increase during fiscal year 2012 was the acquisition of highway network
infrastructure. Further discussion of the State’s capital assets can be found beginning on page 16.

Long-Term Debt — Bonds and Notes Payable and Certificates of Participation Obligations

Overall, the carrying amount of total long-term debt for the State’s primary government increased $780.1 million
or 4.5 percent during fiscal year 2012 and reported an ending balance of $18.3 billion. During the year, the State
issued, at par, $2.28 billion in general obligation bonds, $194 million in revenue bond anticipation notes (BANS),
and $259.2 million in special obligation bonds. Of the general obligation bonds and special obligation bonds is-
sued, at par, $1.15 billion and $226.5 million, respectively, were refunding bonds. Additional discussion of the
State’s bonds, notes, and certificates of participation can be found beginning on page 17.



Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of management’s discussion and analysis, basic financial statements, including the
accompanying notes to the financial statements, required supplementary information, and combining statements
and schedules for the nonmajor governmental funds, nonmajor proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and nonmajor
discretely presented component unit funds. The basic financial statements are comprised of the government-
wide financial statements and fund financial statements.

Figure 1 below illustrates how the required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another. In
addition to these required elements, as explained later, this report includes an optional section that contains com-
bining statements that provide details about the State’s nonmajor governmental and proprietary funds and dis-
cretely presented component units.

Figure 1
Required Components of the
State of Ohio’s Annual Financial Report

Management'’s Basic Required
Discussion and Financial Supplementary
Analysis Statements Information
] L o
| ' |

Government-wide Fund Notes to the

Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements

SUMMARY LEVEL <+—> DETAIL LEVEL

The Government-wide Financial Statements provide financial information about the State as a whole, including its
component units.

The Fund Financial Statements focus on the State’s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial
statements. The financial statements presented for governmental funds report on the State’s general government
services. Proprietary fund statements report on the activities that the State operates like private-sector business-
es. Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the State acts solely
as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others outside of the government, to whom the resources belong.

Following the fund financial statements, the State includes financial statements for its major component units with-
in the basic financial statements section. Nonmajor component units are also presented in aggregation under a
single column in the component unit financial statements.

The basic financial statements section includes notes that more fully explain the information in the government-
wide and fund financial statements; the notes provide more detailed data that are essential to a full understanding
of the data presented in the financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 52
through 138 of this report.

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, a section of required supplementary infor-
mation further discusses the assessed condition and estimated and actual maintenance and preservation costs of
the state’s highway and bridge infrastructure assets that are reported using the modified approach. Limited in
application to a government’s infrastructure assets, the modified approach provides an alternative to the tradition-
al recognition of depreciation expense. Required supplementary information can be found on pages 139 through
142 of this report.

Figure 2 on the following page summarizes the major features of the State’s financial statements.



Figure 2

Major Features of the State of Ohio’s Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide

Fund Statements

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire State govern- The activities of the Activities the State op- Instances in which the
ment (except fiduciary State that are not pro- erates similar to private State is the trustee or
funds) and the State’s prietary or fiduciary, businesses, such as the agent for someone
component units such as general gov- workers’ compensation else’s resources
ernment, transportation, insurance program,
justice and public pro- lottery, tuition credit
tection, etc. program, etc.
Required ¢ Statement of e Balance Sheet o Statement of e Statement of
Financial Net Assets e Statement of Net Assets Fiduciary Net Assets
Statements e Statement of Revenues, e Statement of e Statement of Changes
Activities Expenditures and Revenues, Expenses in Fiduciary
Changes in Fund and Changes in Net Assets
Balances Fund Net Assets
e Statement of
Cash Flows
Accounting Accrual accounting Modified accrual ac- Accrual accounting and Accrual accounting and
Basis and and economic re- counting and current economic resources economic resources
Measurement sources focus financial resources fo- focus focus
Focus cus
Type of All assets and liabili- Only assets expected to All assets and liabilities, All assets and liabilities,
asset/liability ties, both financial and be used up and liabili- both financial and capi- both financial and capi-
information capital, and short-term ties that come due dur- tal, and short-term and tal, and short-term and
and long-term ing the year or soon long-term long-term
thereafter; no capital
assets included
Type of All revenues and ex- Revenues for which All revenues and ex- All revenues and ex-
inflow/outflow penses during the cash is received during penses during the year, penses during the year,
information year, regardless of or soon after the end of regardless of when cash regardless of when cash

when cash is received the year; expenditures

or paid when goods or services
have been received and
payment is due during
the year or soon there-
after

is received or paid is received or paid

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.
For these statements, the State applies accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies;
that is, the State follows the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources focus when preparing the
government-wide financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets includes all of the government’s assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Activities regard-
less of the timing of related cash inflows or outflows.

The two government-wide financial statements report the State’s net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets — the difference between the State’s assets/deferred outflows of resources and liabilities/deferred inflows
of resources — is one way to measure the State’s financial health, or position. Over time, increases or decreases
in the State’s net assets indicate whether its financial health has improved or deteriorated, respectively. However,
a reader should consider additional nonfinancial factors, such as changes in the State’s economic indicators and
the condition of the State’s highway system, when assessing the State’s overall financial status.

The State’s government-wide financial statements, which can be found on pages 22 through 25 of this report, are
divided into three categories as follows.

Governmental Activities — Most of the State’s basic services are reported under this category, such as primary,
secondary and other education, higher education support, public assistance and Medicaid, health and human
services, justice and public protection, environmental protection and natural resources, transportation, general
government, and community and economic development. Taxes, federal grants, charges for services, including
license, permit, and other fee income, fines and forfeitures, and other income finance most of these activities.

Business-type Activities — The State charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of certain services it pro-

vides. The State reports the following programs and activities as business-type: workers’ compensation insur-
ance program, lottery operations, unemployment compensation program, the leasing and maintenance operations
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of the Ohio Building Authority, which ceased operations December 31, 2011, guaranteed college tuition credit
program, liquor control operations, underground parking garage operations at the statehouse, and the Auditor of
State’s governmental auditing and accounting services.

Component Units — The State presents the financial activities of the School Facilities Commission, Cultural Facil-
ities Commission, eTech Ohio Commission, Ohio Water Development Authority, Ohio Air Quality Development
Authority, the Ohio Capital Fund, and 22 state-assisted colleges and universities as discretely presented compo-
nent units under a separate column in the government-wide financial statements. The Buckeye Tobacco Settle-
ment Financing Authority is presented as a blended component unit with its activities blended and included under
governmental activities. Additionally, the Ohio Building Authority, which ceased operations December 31, 2011,
is presented as a blended component unit with its activities blended and included under governmental and busi-
ness-type activities. Although legally separate, the State is financially accountable for its component units, as is
further explained in NOTE 1A. to the financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the State’s most significant funds — not
the State as a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. State law and bond covenants mandate the use of
some funds. The Ohio General Assembly establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes or to show that the State is properly using certain taxes and grants. The State employs fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The State has three kinds of
funds — governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds — Most of the State’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on
how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out (i.e., near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources) and the balances remaining at year-end that are available for spending
(i.e., balances of spendable resources). Consequently, the governmental fund financial statements provide a de-
tailed short-term view that helps the financial statement reader determine whether there are more or fewer finan-
cial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the State’s programs. The State prepares the gov-
ernmental fund financial statements by applying the modified accrual basis of accounting and a current financial
resources focus. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of the govern-
ment-wide statements, a reconciliation schedule, which follows each of the governmental fund financial state-
ments, explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

The State’s governmental funds include the General Fund and 10 special revenue funds, 25 debt service funds,
and 11 capital projects funds. Under separate columns, information is presented in the Balance Sheet and
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, the Job, Family and
Other Human Services Special Revenue Fund, and the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Reve-
nue Bonds Debt Service Fund, all of which are considered major funds. Data from the other 44 governmental
funds, which are classified as nonmajor funds, are combined into an aggregated presentation under a single col-
umn on the basic governmental fund financial statements. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor gov-
ernmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

For budgeted governmental funds, the State also presents budgetary comparison statements and schedules in
the basic financial statements and combining statements, respectively, to demonstrate compliance with the ap-
propriated budget. The State’s budgetary process is explained further in NOTE 1D. to the financial statements.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 26 through 35 of this report while the
combining fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 145 through 204.

Proprietary Funds — Services for which the State charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Financial statements for the proprietary funds, which are classified as enterprise funds, provide both long-
and short-term financial information. Like the government-wide financial statements, the State prepares the pro-
prietary fund financial statements for its eight enterprise funds by applying the accrual basis of accounting and an
economic resources focus.

Under separate columns, information is presented in the Statement of Net Assets, Statement of Revenues, Ex-
penses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and Statement of Cash Flows for the Workers’ Compensation, Lottery
Commission, and Unemployment Compensation enterprise funds, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other five enterprise funds, which are classified as nonmajor funds, are combined into an aggregat-
ed presentation under a single column on the basic proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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The enterprise funds are the same as the State’s business-type activities reported in the government-wide finan-
cial statements, but the proprietary fund financial statements provide more detail and additional information, such
as information on cash flows. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 36 through
43 of this report while the combining fund statements can be found on pages 205 through 213.

Fiduciary Funds — The State is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that — because of a trust arrangement — can
only be used for the trust beneficiaries. The State is responsible for ensuring the assets reported in these funds
are used for their intended purposes. All of the State’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of
Fiduciary Net Assets and a Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. The State excludes the State High-
way Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, Variable College Savings Plan Private-Purpose Trust Fund,
STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund, and the agency funds from its government-wide financial statements because
the State cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be
found on pages 44 through 47 of this report.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS A WHOLE

Net Assets. During fiscal year 2012, as shown in the table below, the combined net assets of the State’s primary
government increased $2.32 billion or 10.2 percent. Net assets reported for governmental activities decreased
$166.4 million or less than one percent and business-type activities increased $2.49 billion, or 61 percent. Con-
densed financial information derived from the Statement of Net Assets for the primary government follows.

Statement of Net Assets
As of June 30, 2012
With Comparatives as of June 30, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

As of June 30, 2012 As of June 30, 2011
Govern- Business- Total Govern- Business- Total
mental Type Primary mental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Assets and Deferred
Outflows of Resources:
Current Assets and Other

Noncurrent ASSEtS ........ce....... $ 18,274,202 $ 29,364,751  $ 47,638,953 $ 18,125,869 $ 27,813,243 $ 45,939,112
Capital 8SSEtS ......cvveveeerrerinnn, 25,611,543 144,164 25,755,707 25,559,678 160,302 25,719,980

Total ASSELS ...vvevevre e 43,885,745 29,508,915 73,394,660 43,685,547 27,973,545 71,659,092

Total Deferred Outflows

0f RESOUICES ....vvvveveeeeeen, $ 59,117 $ - $ 59,117 $ 36,708 $ - $ 36,708
Liabilities
Current and Other Liabilities......... 6,239,624 (16,211) * 6,223,413 6,659,174 145,688 6,804,862
Noncurrent Liabilities.................. 19,107,231 22,956,562 42,063,793 18,298,713 23,748,969 42,047,682
Total Liabilities..........cccoovveennns 25,346,855 22,940,351 48,287,206 24,957,887 23,894,657 48,852,544
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt ................ 22,147,262 67,331 22,214,593 23,157,156 54,430 23,211,586
Restricted.......covveveiiiiieie, 3,579,618 7,884,358 11,463,976 3,856,555 5,844,952 9,701,507
Unrestricted..........coovivveiiennn, (7,128,873) (1,383,125) (8,511,998) (8,249,343) (1,820,494) (10,069,837)

Total Net ASSetS..........cccvvenne $ 18,598,007 $ 6,568,564 $ 25,166,571 $ 18,764,368 $ 4,078,888 $ 22,843,256

* Internal balances exceeded current and other liabilities. (See page 22.)

As of June 30, 2012, the primary government’s investment in capital assets (i.e., land, buildings, land improve-
ments, machinery and equipment, vehicles, infrastructure, and construction-in-progress), less related outstanding
debt, was $22.21 billion. Restricted net assets were approximately $11.46 billion, resulting in an $8.51 billion def-
icit. Net assets are restricted when constraints on their use are 1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, con-
tributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 2) legally imposed through constitutional or enabling leg-
islation. Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in
capital assets, net of related debt.”

The government-wide Statement of Net Assets reflects a $7.13 billion deficit for unrestricted governmental activi-
ties. The State of Ohio, like many other state governments, issues general and special obligation debt, the pro-
ceeds of which benefit local governments and component units. The proceeds are used to build facilities for pub-
lic-assisted colleges and universities and local school districts and finance infrastructure improvements for local
governments. The policy of selling general obligation and special obligation bonds for these purposes has been
the practice for many years. Of the $10.98 billion of outstanding general obligation and special obligation debt at
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June 30, 2012, $8.13 hillion is attributable to debt issued for state assistance to component units (School Facili-
ties Commission, Cultural Facilities Commission, and the colleges and universities) and local governments. The
balance sheets of component unit and local government recipients reflect ownership of the related constructed
capital assets without the burden of recording the debt. Unspent proceeds related to these bond issuances are
included on the Statement of Net Assets as restricted net assets. By issuing such debt, the State is left to reflect
significant liabilities without the benefit of recording the capital assets constructed with the proceeds from the debt
issuances.

Additionally, as of June 30, 2012, the State’s governmental activities have significant unfunded liabilities for com-
pensated absences in the amount of $440.4 million (see NOTE 14A.) and a $699.5 million interfund payable due
to the workers’ compensation component of business-type activities for the State’s workers’ compensation liability
(see NOTE 7A.). These unfunded liabilities also contribute to the reported deficit for governmental activities.

Condensed financial information derived from the Statement of Activities, which reports how the net assets of the
State’s primary government changed during fiscal years 2012 and 2011, follows.

Primary Government
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparatives for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

(dollars in thousands)

Fiscal Year 2012 Fiscal Year 2011
Govern- Business- Total Govern- Business- Total
mental Type Primary mental Type Primary
Activities Activities Government Activities Activities Government
Program Revenue:
Charges for Services, Fees,
Fines and Forfeitures ............ccccccovvvvvninns $ 4,031,628 $ 7,283,146 $ 11,314,774 $ 3,776,993 % 6,957,195 $ 10,734,188
Operating Grants, Contributions and
Restricted Investment Income/ (I0ss) ........ 20,053,477 3,568,091 23,621,568 22,041,872 5,002,794 27,044,666
Capital Grants, Contributions and
Restricted Investment Income/ (I0sS) ........ 1,573,765 - 1,573,765 1,465,484 - 1,465,484
Total Program Revenues ................c...... 25,658,870 10,851,237 36,510,107 27,284,349 11,959,989 39,244,338
General Revenues:
GeNEral TAXES. .. uvuvvuvrieeaa e e 21,374,384 - 21,374,384 20,626,711 - 20,626,711
Taxes Restricted for Transportation 1,800,473 - 1,800,473 1,759,421 - 1,759,421
Tobacco Settlement . 333,148 - 333,148 334,665 - 334,665
Escheat Property ..................... - 153,556 - 153,556 101,289 - 101,289
Unrestricted Investment Income .. 3,702 3 3,705 2,688 1,184 3,872
Other ..oovveiiiiiiii e 48,078 5 48,083 1,323 - 1,323
Total General Revenues .... 23,713,341 8 23,713,349 22,826,097 1,184 22,827,281
Total Revenue..........cocovvevieiiiiiiniinins 49,372,211 10,851,245 60,223,456 50,110,446 11,961,173 62,071,619
Expenses:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education ....... 12,340,848 - 12,340,848 12,126,435 - 12,126,435
Higher Education Support ..............ccccevveeens 2,348,154 - 2,348,154 2,726,016 - 2,726,016
Public Assistance and Medicaid 21,206,515 - 21,206,515 20,111,691 - 20,111,691
Health and Human Services ..............ccccceee. 3,835,369 - 3,835,369 4,295,483 - 4,295,483
Justice and Public Protection ....................... 3,202,970 - 3,202,970 3,184,345 - 3,184,345
Environmental Protection and
Natural RESOUICES .......cooviiiieii e 407,379 - 407,379 350,870 - 350,870
Transportation...........coooeeeeieeie e 2,564,702 - 2,564,702 2,186,332 - 2,186,332
General GOVErNMENt .............ucvvvveeiviviennnnns 595,797 - 595,797 792,728 - 792,728
Community and Economic Development ........ 3,867,888 3,867,888 4,479,010 4,479,010
Interest on Long term Debt
(excludes interest charged as
Program eXPeNSE) .......c.eeeeeeeereeneeneaneaaees 118,902 - 118,902 134,888 - 134,888
Workers' Compensation - 1,945,190 1,945,190 - 2,354,296 2,354,296
Lottery Commission ............... - 2,001,671 2,001,671 - 1,911,105 1,911,105
Unemployment Compensation ..................... - 2,754,835 2,754,835 - 4,094,207 4,094,207
Ohio Building AuthOrity..............cvvvviiiiiiiiinnne - 13,010 13,010 - 22,076 22,076
Tuition Trust Authority ... - 80,157 80,157 - 79,671 79,671
Liquor Control .................... . - 543,729 543,729 - 507,800 507,800
Underground Parking Garage ...................... - 3,842 3,842 - 3,171 3,171
Office of Auditor of State ............ccccccvvveennne - 69,183 69,183 - 69,185 69,185
Total EXPenses .............uevveveenns 50,488,524 7,411,617 57,900,141 50,387,798 9,041,511 59,429,309
Surplus/ (Deficiency) Before Transfers (1,116,313) 3,439,628 2,323,315 (277,352) 2,919,662 2,642,310
Transfers - Internal Activities...............coc...... 949,952 (949,952) - 945,551 (945,551) -
Change In Net ASSEtS..........uvvvriviiviieiiiiinnnns (166,361) 2,489,676 2,323,315 668,199 1,974,111 2,642,310
Net Assets, July 1 18,764,368 4,078,888 22,843,256 18,096,169 2,104,777 20,200,946

Net Assets, June 30 18,598,007 _$ 6,568,564 _$ 25,166,571 $ 18,764,368 _$ 4,078,888 _$ 22,843,256
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Governmental Activities

Expenses exceeded revenues during fiscal year 2012 for governmental activities. Although partially offset with
transfers from the State’s business-type activities, net assets for governmental activities decreased from $18.76
billion, at July 1, 2011, to $18.6 billion, at June 30, 2012, or $166.4 million. Revenues of $49.37 billion for fiscal
year 2012 were 1.5 percent lower than those reported for fiscal year 2011. General taxes (including taxes restrict-
ed for transportation purposes) comprised 46.9 percent of fiscal year 2012 total revenues and increased by 3.5
percent compared to fiscal year 2011. Operating grants, contributions and restricted investment income, making
up 40.6 percent of total revenues, decreased by nine percent compared to fiscal year 2011. Fiscal year 2012 net
transfers of $950 million and expenses of $50.49 billion both reflect increases of less than one percent over fiscal
year 2011.

The following charts illustrate revenues by source and expenses by program of governmental activities as per-
centages of total revenues and program expenses, respectively, reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

Governmental Activities — Sources of Revenue
Fiscal Year 2012

Charges for Services,
Fees, Fines &

Other General Forfeitures

Revenue 8.2%
1.1%

General Taxes
(including taxes
restricted for

transportation
purposes)
0,
Operating Grants, 46.9%
Contributions &

Restricted Investment

Income Capital Grants,
40.6% Contributions &
Restricted Investment
Income
3.2%

Total FY 12 Revenue for Governmental Activities = $49.37 Billion

Governmental Activities — Expenses by Program
Fiscal Year 2012

Justice & Public Transporation
Protection 5.1%
6.3%

Health & Human

Servi;:es Public Assistance &
7.6% Medicaid
42.0%

Higher Education
Support
4.7%

Other
2.2%

Primary, Secondary
Other Education
24.4%

Community and
Economic
Development
7.7%

Total FY 12 Program Expenses for Governmental Activities = $50.49 Billion
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The following tables present the total expenses and net cost of each of the State’s governmental programs for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. The net cost (total program expenses less revenues generated by
the program) represents the financial burden that was placed on the State’s taxpayers by each of these programs.
This cost is essentially funded with the State’s general revenues from taxes, tobacco settlement, and escheat

property.

Program Expenses and Net Costs of Governmental Activities by Program
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012
With Comparatives for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
(dollars in thousands)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net Cost as

Net Cost as Percentage of
Percentage of Total

Program Net Cost Total Expenses Expenses—All

Program Expenses of Program for Program Programs
Primary, Secondary and Other Education............... $ 12,340,848 $ 10,016,493 81.2% 19.8%
Higher Education Support...........c..cocviviiniininnennn. 2,348,154 2,320,263 98.8% 4.6%
Public Assistance and Medicaid................c..ccc.u.... 21,206,515 5,368,909 25.3% 10.6%
Health and Human Services.............ccccoviivinnnnn. 3,835,369 946,317 24.7% 1.9%
Justice and Public Protection...................c.coeeee. 3,202,970 2,058,956 64.3% 4.1%
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources..... 407,379 109,574 26.9% 0.2%
Transportation...........cvoiei i 2,564,702 847,524 33.0% 1.7%
General GOVEIMMENt..........cuuiuiiiiieieieeie e s 595,797 20,614 3.5% 0.1%
Community and Economic Development................. 3,867,888 3,022,102 78.1% 6.0%
Interest on Long-Term Debt...................coc 118,902 118,902 100.0% 0.2%
Total Governmental ActiVities..........cccevvveiineennnn. $ 50,488,524 $ 24,829,654 49.2% 49.2%
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011
Net Cost as

Net Cost as Percentage of
Percentage of Total

Program Net Cost Total Expenses Expenses—All

Program Expenses of Program for Program Programs

Primary, Secondary and Other Education............... $ 12,126,435 $ 9,297,999 76.7% 18.5%
Higher Education Support.............cocoevviiniininnennn. 2,726,016 2,407,828 88.3% 4.8%
Public Assistance and Medicaid................cc..ccuun... 20,111,691 3,991,432 19.8% 7.9%
Health and Human Services.............cccovvivvinnennn. 4,295,483 1,214,661 28.3% 2.4%
Justice and Public Protection...................ccceene. 3,184,345 1,632,939 51.3% 3.2%
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources..... 350,870 46,697 13.3% 0.1%
Transportation.........c..cveeveiiiiiii i 2,186,332 552,843 25.3% 1.1%
General GOVEIMMENt..........ouuviiiiiiein e iee e s 792,728 407,420 51.4% 0.8%
Community and Economic Development................. 4,479,010 3,416,742 76.3% 6.8%
Interest on Long-Term Debt...........cccovvvieviiinnnnnn. 134,888 134,888 100.0% 0.3%
Total Governmental ActiVities..........c.ccovvviiiineennnn. $ 50,387,798 $ 23,103,449 45.9% 45.9%

Business-Type Activities

The State’s enterprise funds reported net assets of $6.57 billion, as of June 30, 2012, as compared to $4.08 bil-
lion in net assets, as of June 30, 2011, an increase of 61 percent. The primary cause for the increase in busi-
ness-type activities’ net assets was the Workers’ Compensation Fund, which reported net assets of $7.82 billion,
as of June 30, 2012, as compared to $5.77 billion, as of June 30, 2011, a $2.05 billion increase. The Lottery
Commission and the Unemployment Compensation Fund also reported increases in net assets during fiscal year
2012. The Lottery Commission Fund reported net assets of $238.5 million, as of June 30, 2012, as compared to
$150.7 million, as of June 30, 2011, an $87.8 million increase. The net assets in the Unemployment Compensa-
tion Fund increased $313.8 million from $(1.93) billion, as of June 30, 2011, to $(1.61) billion, as of June 30,
2012.
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The chart below compares program expenses and program revenues for business-type activities.

Business-Type Activities — Expenses and Program Revenues

Fiscal Year 2012
Other Business-Type Activities ;
e onpeser i
DExpenses

m Program Revenues

Ohio Lottery Commission

Workers' Compensation

$0 $1,000 $2,000 $3,000 $4,000 $5,000 $6,000
Dollars in Millions

Additional analysis of the Business-Type Activities’ revenues and expenses is included with the discussion of the
Proprietary Funds beginning on page 15.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE'S FUNDS
The State uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds
Governmental funds reported the following results, as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2012 and June

30, 2011 (dollars in thousands).
As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2012

Other Nonmajor Total
General Major Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds Funds
Unassigned Fund Balance (Deficit) .............c........ $ (415,658) $ (547) $ - $ (416,205)
Total Fund BalanCe..........ccoouvveeiieeiiieeeeeeeeee 3,189,993 5,340,400 2,786,073 11,316,466
Total REVENUES ......nieeeeeeeeee e 30,928,235 9,331,664 9,037,918 49,297,817
Total EXpenditures. ..o 29,972,837 9,651,271 11,553,067 51,177,175

As of and for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

Other Nonmajor Total
General Major Governmental Governmental

Fund Funds Funds Funds
Unassigned Fund Balance (Deficit) .............cc........ $ (1,208,029) $ - (25) $ (1,208,054)
Total Fund BalanCe..........cccoeevieeieiiiiiee e 2,223,608 5,638,892 2,860,682 10,723,182
Total REVENUES ......nieeeeeeeeee e 30,914,677 9,860,521 9,202,236 49,977,434
Total EXpenditures...........coooeeeiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennn 29,837,914 9,880,100 $11,537,549 51,255,563

General Fund

The main operating fund of the State is the General Fund. During fiscal year 2012, General Fund revenue and
expenditures increased by $13.6 million and $134.9 million, respectively. Other sources and uses showed an
increase of net sources of $482.4 million when compared with fiscal year 2011. Higher personal income tax rev-
enue, increased non-auto sales and use tax revenues from expanded Medicaid Health Insuring Corporations col-
lections, and debt issuance proceeds offset decreased federal funding and increased spending for Public Assis-
tance and Medicaid. Total fund balance at June 30, 2012, increased by $968 million (exclusive of a $1.6 million
decrease in inventories) or 43.5 percent.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The State ended the first year of its 2012-13 biennial budget on June 30, 2012, with a General Fund budgetary
fund balance (i.e., cash less encumbrances) of $2.33 billion. Total budgetary sources for the General Fund (in-
cluding $1.24 billion in transfers from other funds) in the amount of $33.95 billion were below final estimates by
$648 million or 1.9 percent during fiscal year 2012. Total tax receipts were above final estimates by $399 million
or 1.8 percent.

Total budgetary uses for the General Fund (including $1.75 billion in transfers to other funds) in the amount of
$34.55 bhillion were below final estimates by $2.39 billion or 6.5 percent for fiscal year 2012. There was no budget
stabilization designation at June 30, 2011, for use in balancing the final fiscal year 2012 budget.

The appropriations act (Act) for the 2012-13 biennium for the General Revenue Fund (GRF), the largest, non-
GAAP, budgetary-basis operating fund included in the State’s General Fund, was passed by the General Assem-
bly and signed (with selective vetoes) by the Governor on June 30, 2011. To address the use of non-recurring
funding sources in the prior budget biennium including amounts received under the American Recovery and Re-
investment Act (ARRA), the Act included targeted spending cuts across most State Agencies and major new
Medicaid reform and cost containment measures. The Act provided for GRF biennial appropriations of approxi-
mately $55.78 billion, an 11 percent increase from the 2010-11 GRF biennial expenditures, and GRF biennial es-
timated revenue of approximately $56.07 billion, a six percent increase from the 2010-11 GRF biennial revenues.

GRF appropriations for major program categories compared to the 2010-11 biennium actual GRF spending re-
flected increases of 30 percent for Medicaid and three percent for elementary and secondary education; decreas-
es of nine percent for higher education and eight percent for mental health and developmental disabilities; and flat
funding for corrections and youth services. The Act also reflected the restructuring of $440 million of fiscal year
2012 GRF debt service into fiscal years 2013 through 2025.

The Act authorized the transfer of the State’s spirituous liquor distribution and merchandising operations to
JobsOhio Beverage Systems, an Ohio nonprofit corporation, the sole member of which is JobsOhio, a nonprofit
corporation created to promote economic development, job creation and retention, job training, and the recruit-
ment of business to the State. In consideration of this transfer, the State anticipated receiving a $500 million one-
time payment from JobsOhio in fiscal year 2012 and would have forgone annual deposits to the GRF from net
liquor profits. The transfer did not occur in fiscal year 2012 and the State did not receive the anticipated $500 mil-
lion one-time payment during fiscal year 2012; however, annual net liquor profits of $92.5 million were deposited
into the GRF.

The Act also authorized the sale of five State-owned prison facilities to private operators. On September 1, 2011,
the State announced that it opted to sell only one of the facilities. Litigation has been filed that challenges the au-
thorization in the Act to sell the facilities.

Additional expenditure savings authorized by the Act included reduced allocations to the local government fund
and the public library fund and the accelerated phase-out of reimbursement payments in connection with the elim-
ination of the tangible personal property tax and electric power generation deregulation and natural gas deregula-
tion, for local governments and school districts. It also provided for cost savings through changes to the State’s
construction bidding procedures and authorized transfers to the GRF from unclaimed funds, other non-GRF
funds, and a tax amnesty program.

Several tax law changes were enacted, including the implementation of the previously postponed final 4.2 percent
annual decrease in State personal income tax rates. The Act created the InvestOhio income tax credit program
under which investors in small businesses based in Ohio, who hold their investments for at least two years, may
be eligible to receive income tax credits.

New funds were created by the Act, including a $130 million Medicaid reserve fund and a $104 million Unem-
ployment Compensation Contingency Fund. The Unemployment Compensation Contingency Fund is used to pay
interest on federal advances to the State Unemployment Compensation Fund.

The Ohio Constitution prohibits the State from borrowing money to fund operating expenditures in the GRF.
Therefore, by law, the GRF’s budget must be balanced so that appropriations do not exceed available cash re-
ceipts and cash balances for the current fiscal year.

The State ended fiscal year 2012 with a GRF cash balance of $973.4 million and a GRF budgetary fund balance
of $371 million. In addition to meeting the State’s requirement to maintain an ending fund balance reflecting one-
half of one percent of fiscal year 2012 GRF revenues, the State deposited $235.1 million into the Budget Stabili-
zation Fund in early fiscal year 2013.
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Other Major Governmental Funds

The Job, Family and Other Human Services Fund had a fund balance of $196.1 million at June 30, 2012, a de-
crease of $224.4 million, or 53.4 percent, compared to fiscal year 2011. The decrease in fund balance is due to
expenditures exceeding revenues by $259.3 million. A 51.9 percent decrease in net Other Financing Sources
over the prior fiscal year due to a reduction in bonds and notes issued in fiscal year 2012 over fiscal year 2011
also contributed to the decline in the fund balance.

Federal Government revenue decreased by $777.3 million, or 9.2 percent, over fiscal year 2011. This decrease
in revenue is largely due to the phase out of ARRA stimulus funding. An increase of $190.2 million, or 21.3 per-
cent, in License, Permits and Fees income is due in part to the rise in the hospital franchise fees.

Health and Human Services expenditures decreased by $383.3 million and Public Assistance and Medicaid ex-
penditures increased by $153.2 million compared to fiscal year 2011. These variances are the result of the
change in responsibility for the payment of Medicaid for aging programs from the Ohio Department of Aging dur-
ing fiscal year 2011 to the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services during fiscal year 2012. The reduction in
ARRA funding also played a role in the decreased expenditures in the fund.

The fund balance for the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Revenue Bonds Fund, as of June 30,
2012, totaled approximately $5.14 billion dollars, a decrease of $74.1 million or 1.4 percent since June 30, 2011.
Tobacco settlement revenue was $5.3 million higher than the amount received for fiscal year 2011 due to a timing
difference in collections between fiscal years 2011 and 2012. In general, tobacco settlement revenue has been
decreasing in recent years due to declining cigarette consumption and tobacco companies depositing money into
the disputed account, as described in Note 19D. Investment income decreased $2 million from $2.6 million in
fiscal year 2011 to $667 thousand in fiscal year 2012. Debt Service expenditures decreased by $4.6 million dur-
ing fiscal year 2012 as a result of changing debt service requirements for the bonds. Notwithstanding the in-
creases in revenues and decreases in expenditures during fiscal year 2012, the ending fund balance decreased
at June 30, 2012, as a result of the total expenditures being in excess of revenue collected during the fiscal year.

Proprietary Funds

Major Proprietary Funds

The State’s proprietary fund financial statements report the same type of information found in the business-type
activities portion of the government-wide financial statements, but in a slightly different format.

For the Workers’ Compensation Fund, the $2.05 billion increase in net assets was due to a steady stream of pre-
mium and assessment income and a decrease in benefits and claims expenses of approximately $406 million or
18.1 percent. Benefits and claims expenses decreased due to lower estimates for future medical expenses at-
tributable to lower claims frequencies and a decrease in the medical inflation rate.

For fiscal year 2012, the Lottery Commission Fund reported $859.2 million in net income before transfers of $771
million and $335 thousand to the Education and General Funds, respectively. The $87.8 million or 58.3 percent
increase in the fund’s net assets to $238.5 million, as of June 30, 2012, was predominately due to an increase in
ticket sales and new collections of video lottery terminal revenues. Ticket sales increased $138 million or 5.3 per-
cent, resulting in record sales of $2.74 billion. Additionally, the Lottery Commission began collecting video lottery
terminal and license revenues in fiscal year 2012, receiving $36.1 million. These events account for the $174.1
million or 6.7 percent increase in charges for sales and service revenues from $2.6 billion in fiscal year 2011 to
$2.78 billion in fiscal year 2012. Prizes expenses were $1.68 billion as of June 30, 2012, compared to $1.6 billion,
as of June 30, 2011, an increase of approximately $77.7 million or 4.9 percent. This increase was in proportion to
ticket sales.

The $313.8 million increase in net assets in the Unemployment Compensation Fund is due to the declining un-
employment rate. The unemployment rate in Ohio dropped from an average of 9.3 percent in fiscal year 2011 to
an average of 7.9 percent in fiscal year 2012. The decrease in the unemployment rate caused the State’s bene-
fits and claims expense to decrease by $1.34 billion or 32.8 percent from the previous fiscal year. While the State
of Ohio’s benefits and claims expense decreased, the State received less money from the federal government.
During fiscal year 2012, the State received $1.43 billion from the federal government compared to $2.52 billion in
fiscal year 2011 resulting in a 43.3 percent decrease in federal funding. The premium and assessment income,
however, increased by $49.8 million.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, the State had invested $25.76 billion and $25.72 bhillion, respectively, net
of accumulated depreciation of $3.28 billion and $3.11 billion, respectively, in a broad range of capital assets, as
detailed in the table below.

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
As of June 30, 2012
With Comparatives as of June 30, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

As of June 30, 2012 As of June 30, 2011
Business- Business-
Governmental Type Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Land .....ooieieieeneeeee $ 2,154,598 $ 11,994 $ 2,166,592 $ 2,082,738 $ 11,994 $ 2,094,732
Buildings ........ooooiiiiiiiiii, 1,686,151 67,505 1,753,656 1,779,018 75,039 1,854,057
Land Improvements ................ 185,119 9 185,128 181,204 10 181,214
Machinery and Equipment ...... 247,555 55,023 302,578 274,472 71,335 345,807
Vehicles ......coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiis 139,444 2,309 141,753 125,927 1,924 127,851
Infrastructure:
Highw ay Netw ork:
General Subsystem ............ 8,588,032 - 8,588,032 8,544,734 - 8,544,734
Priority Subsystem ............. 8,195,288 - 8,195,288 7,895,454 - 7,895,454
Bridge Network .............c...... 2,964,043 - 2,964,043 2,937,912 - 2,937,912
Parks, Recreation, and
Natural Resources System 81,827 - 81,827 83,732 - 83,732
24,242,057 136,840 24,378,897 23,905,191 160,302 24,065,493
Construction-in-Progress ....... 1,369,486 7,324 1,376,810 1,654,487 - 1,654,487
Total Capital Assets, Net ........ $ 25,611,543 $ 144,164 $25,755,707 $ 25,559,678 $160,302 $25,719,980

During fiscal year 2012, the State recognized $416.8 million in annual depreciation expense relative to its gov-
ernmental capital assets as compared with $346.6 million in annual depreciation expense recognized in fiscal
year 2011. The State also recognized $32.6 million in annual depreciation expense relative to its business-type
capital assets as compared with $32.7 million in annual depreciation expense recognized in fiscal year 2011.

Additionally, the State completed construction on a variety of projects at various state facilities during fiscal year
2012 totaling approximately $574.8 million, as compared with $550.5 million in the previous fiscal year. The total
increase in the State’s capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, for the current fiscal year was .1 percent
(approximately a .2 percent increase for governmental activities and a 10.1 percent decrease for business-type
activities). As is further detailed in NOTE 19C of the notes to the financial statements, the State had $83.5 million
in major construction commitments (unrelated to infrastructure), as of June 30, 2012, as compared with the
$105.8 million balance reported for June 30, 2011.

Modified Approach

For reporting its highway and bridge infrastructure assets, the State has adopted the use of the modified ap-
proach. The modified approach allows a government not to report depreciation expense for eligible infrastructure
assets if the government manages the eligible infrastructure assets using an asset management system that pos-
sesses certain characteristics and the government can document that the eligible infrastructure assets are being
preserved approximately at (or above) a condition level it sets (and discloses). Under the modified approach, the
State is required to expense all spending (i.e., preservation and maintenance costs) on infrastructure assets ex-
cept for additions and improvements. Infrastructure assets accounted for using the modified approach include
approximately 43,026 in lane miles of highway (13,109 in lane miles for the priority highway subsystem and
29,917 in lane miles for the general highway subsystem) and approximately 105.3 million square feet of deck area
that comprises 14,182 bridges for which the State has the responsibility for ongoing maintenance.

Ohio accounts for its pavement network in two subsystems: Priority, which comprises interstate highways, free-
ways, and multi-lane portions of the National Highway System, and General, which comprises two-lane routes
outside of cities. It is the State’s goal to allow no more than 25 percent of the total lane-miles reported for each of
the priority and general subsystems, respectively, to be classified with a “poor” condition rating. The most recent
condition assessment, completed by the Ohio Department of Transportation for calendar year 2011, indicates that
only 1.3 percent and 3.7 percent of the priority and general subsystems, respectively, were assigned a “poor”
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condition rating. For calendar year 2010, only 2.2 percent and 3.9 percent of the priority and general subsystems,
respectively, were assigned a “poor” condition rating.

For the bridge network, it is the State’s intention to allow no more than 15 percent of the total number of square
feet of deck area to be in “fair” or “poor” condition. The most recent condition assessment, completed by the Ohio
Department of Transportation for calendar year 2011, indicates that only four percent and .04 percent of the num-
ber of square feet of bridge deck area were considered to be in “fair” and “poor” conditions, respectively. For
calendar year 2010, only 3.8 percent and .04 percent of the number of square feet of bridge deck area were con-
sidered to be in “fair” and “poor” conditions, respectively.

For fiscal year 2012, total actual maintenance and preservation costs for the priority and general subsystems
were $438.5 million and $357.3 million, respectively, compared to estimated costs of $403.8 million for the priority
system and $211.2 million for the general system, while total actual maintenance and preservation costs for the
bridge network was $511.5 million compared to estimated costs of $509 million. For the previous fiscal year, total
actual maintenance and preservation costs for the priority and general subsystems were $420 million and $342.2
million respectively, compared to estimated costs of $406.1 million for the priority system and $258.4 million for
the general system, while total actual maintenance and preservation costs for the bridge network was $409.7 mil-
lion compared to estimated costs of $433.6 million. Overall, the State’s costs for actual maintenance and preser-
vation for highway infrastructure assets have exceeded estimates over the past two years due to steadily increas-
ing underlying costs for the materials and labor associated with infrastructure projects.

More detailed information on the State’s capital assets can be found in NOTE 8 to the financial statements and in
the Required Supplementary Information section of this report.

Debt — Bonds and Notes Payable and Certificates of Participation Obligations
As of June 30, 2012 and June 30, 2011, the State had total debt of approximately $18.3 billion and $17.52 billion,
respectively, as shown in the table below.

Bonds and Notes Payable and Certificates of Participation
As of June 30, 2012
With Comparatives as of June 30, 2011
(dollars in thousands)

As of June 30, 2012 As of June 30, 2011
Govern- Business- Govern- Business-
mental Type mental Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Bonds and Notes Payable:
General Obligation Bonds..........ccccceeveeniene. $ 8,888,085 $ - $ 8,888,085 $ 7,872,276 $ - $ 7,872,276
Revenue Bonds and Notes 7,129,786 31,633 7,161,419 7,156,025 47,889 7,203,914
Special Obligation Bonds 2,090,889 - 2,090,889 2,260,853 - 2,260,853
Certificates of Participation............c.ccceceeveennnnn, 156,664 - 156,664 179,935 - 179,935
Total Debt ....ocouveiicciicec e, $18,265,424 $31,633 $18,297,057 $17,469,089 $47,889 $17,516,978

The State’s general obligation bonds are backed by its full faith and credit. Revenue bonds and notes issued by
the State are secured with revenues pledged for the retirement of debt principal and the payment of interest.
Special obligation bonds issued by the State are supported with lease payments from tenants of facilities con-
structed with the proceeds from the bond issuances. Under certificate of participation (COPs) financing arrange-
ments, the State is required to make rental payments (subject to appropriations) that approximate interest and
principal payments made by trustees to certificate holders.

During fiscal year 2012, the State issued, at par, $2.28 billion in general obligation bonds, $194 million in revenue
bonds and notes, and $259.2 million in special obligation bonds. Of the general obligation bonds and special ob-
ligation bonds issued, at par, $1.15 million and $226.5 million, respectively, were refunding bonds. The $194 mil-
lion in revenue bonds and notes issued were Bond Anticipation Notes (BANS) that are expected to be retired, re-
newed, or refunded into long term debt. The total increase in the State’s debt obligations for the current fiscal
year, as based on carrying amount, was 4.5 percent (a 4.6 percent increase for governmental activities and a 34
percent decrease for business-type activities).

Credit Ratings

Ohio’s credit ratings for general obligation debt are Aal by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (Moody’s) and AA+ by
Fitch Inc. (Fitch). Standard & Poor’'s Ratings Services (S&P) rates the State’s general obligation debt as AA+,
other than Highway Capital Improvement Obligations, which are rated AAA.

For special obligation bonds, which the Treasurer of State issues and General Revenue Fund appropriations se-
cure, Moody’s rating is Aa2, Fitch's rating is AA, and S&P’s rating is AA.
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The State’s revenue bonds and notes are rated as follows:

Revenue Bonds and Notes Source of
Fitch Moody’s S&P State Payment

Governmental Activities:
Treasurer of State:

Economic Development...........cccccveevnenne. AA- Aa2 AA Net Liquor Profits
State Infrastructure Bank...........c.cccoceenuene A+ Aa2 AA Federal Transportation Grants and Loan Receipts
Revitalization Projects .........c.cccoeveeveeinennne. AA- Aa3 AA- Net Liquor Profits
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing B- to B3 to B- to Pledged Receipts from the Tobacco Master
Authority (ratings are in a range).............. BBB+ Aaa BBB Settlement Agreement
Business-Type Activities:
Bureau of Workers’ Compensation................ AA Aa3 AA Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund

On March 16, 2012, Moody’s revised its “credit outlook” on the State from “negative” to “stable.” A credit outlook
is an indication of the pressure on the rating over the near-to-intermediate term and is not a precursor to a rating
change. This is the first time since February 2007 that Ohio has been at Aa+/Aal with a stable outlook from all
three rating agencies, including Standard & Poor’s.

The ratings and rating outlooks in effect from time to time reflect only the views of the particular rating organiza-
tion. An explanation of its view of the meaning and significance of its rating or outlook may be obtained from the
respective rating agency. Generally, the rating agencies base their rating on submitted information and on their
own investigations, studies, and assumptions. There can be no assurance that the ratings or outlooks assigned
will continue for any given time. Rating agencies may lower or withdraw a rating at any time, if in its judgment
circumstances so warrant.

Limitations on Debt

Section 17 of Article VIII of the Ohio Constitution, approved by Ohio voters in November 1999, establishes an an-
nual debt service "cap" applicable to future issuances of direct obligations payable from the General Revenue
Fund (GRF) or net state lottery proceeds. Generally, new obligations may not be issued if debt service for any
future fiscal year on those new and the then outstanding bonds of those categories would exceed five percent of
the total of estimated GRF revenues plus net state lottery proceeds for the fiscal year of issuance.

Those direct obligations of the State include general obligation and special obligation bonds that are paid from the
State's GRF, but exclude general obligation debt for Third Frontier Research and Development, development of
sites and facilities, and veterans compensation, and general obligation bonds payable from non-GRF funds (such
as highway bonds that are paid from highway user receipts). Pursuant to the implementing legislation, the Gover-
nor has designated the Director of the Ohio Office of Budget and Management as the State official responsible for
making the five percent determinations and certifications. Application of the five percent cap may be waived in a
particular instance by a three-fifths vote of each house of the Ohio General Assembly and may be changed by
future constitutional amendments.

More detailed information on the State’s long-term debt, including changes during the year, can be found in
NOTES 10 through 13 and NOTE 15 of the financial statements.

Conditions Expected to Affect Future Operations

Economic Factors

Through February 2013, leading economic indicators have weakened but remain consistent with uninterrupted
growth at a moderate pace across the country and especially in Ohio. The Ohio unemployment rate increased to
seven percent in January 2013 after having held below seven percent for three consecutive months in late calen-
dar year 2012. The rate is down from 7.6 percent in January 2012 and is .9 percentage points below the national
unemployment rate for January 2013.

Nationally, real gross domestic product (GDP) was essentially unchanged in the fourth quarter of calendar year
2012 following a 3.1 percent increase in the third quarter. U.S. nonfarm payroll employment increased by 236
thousand jobs during February 2013 and averaged 205 thousand jobs per month during the previous four months.
The national unemployment rate decreased to 7.7 percent in February 2013—the lowest level since December
2008.

The 2012-13 Biennial Budget

Major new sources of expenditure savings and tax law changes in the 2012-13 biennial (beginning July 1, 2011)
appropriations bill included the following:
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¢ In fiscal year 2013, allocations to local governments will be reduced by $340 million and allocations to
public libraries will be reduced by $102.8 million. Beginning in fiscal year 2014, allocations will be made
by committing a set percent of annual tax revenues deposited into the GRF (beginning with fiscal year
2013 GRF tax revenues).

o GREF will receive a greater share of commercial activities tax, kilowatt-hour tax, and natural gas consump-
tion tax revenues due to the accelerated phase-out of reimbursement payments for local governments
and school districts.

e The estate tax will be eliminated beginning January 1, 2013.

Mid-Biennium Review

In March 2012, the Governor announced a series of policy proposals resulting from a “mid-biennium review”
(MBR), with a stated focus on job creation as a priority. In May and June 2012, the General Assembly passed
seven pieces of legislation addressing the subjects of energy, tax reform, education, workforce development, and
management efficiency for both state and local governments.

General Revenue Fund

For fiscal year 2013, total fiscal year-to-date GRF receipts collected through February 2013 are $727.2 million
above estimates and $2.08 billion higher than collections through February of the prior fiscal year. Total fiscal
year-to-date GRF disbursements through February 2013 are $177.1 million below estimates and $993.1 million
above expenditures through February of the prior fiscal year. As of February 2013, receipts were 3.9 percent
ahead of budget estimates and disbursements were .9 percent below budget estimates. Fiscal year 2013 re-
ceipts are 12.1 percent ahead of receipts for the first eight months of fiscal year 2012. Disbursements for fiscal
year 2013 are 5.5 percent above disbursements for the same time period of fiscal year 2012.

Unemployment Compensation Fund

Due to the declining revenues and the challenging economic climate, the State has sought federal assistance in
meeting its unemployment benefit costs. In accordance with Title XIl of the Social Security Act, the State re-
ceived repayable advances in the Unemployment Trust Fund of $2.31 billion from the Federal Unemployment Ac-
count to cover the insufficient State funds for benefit claims during fiscal years 2009 and 2010. The State contin-
ues to make principal and interest payments on these advances. As of June 30, 2012, $1.88 billion of the repay-
able advances remains, as detailed in NOTE 14.

Transfer of the State’s Spirituous Liquor Distribution and Merchandising Operations

On February 1, 2013, the State transferred its spirituous liquor distribution and merchandising operations for a
period of 25 years to JobsOhio Beverage System in exchange for a payment of $1.46 billion. A portion of this
payment provided for the payment of all debt service on the outstanding Economic Development and Revitaliza-
tion revenue bonds and notes. Pursuant to the transaction agreement, the State will forgo deposits to the GRF
from the net liquor profits and may not issue additional obligations secured by a pledge of profits from the sale of
spirituous liquor during the 25-year term. Litigation related to JobsOhio and the General Assembly’s February
2011 law that authorized its creation has been filed and is currently pending. More detailed information on this
transfer can be found in NOTE 21 of the financial statements.

Contacting the Ohio Office of Budget and Management

This financial report is designed to provide the State’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the State’s finances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions regarding any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Ohio Office of Budget and Management, Financial Reporting Section, 30 East Broad
Street, 34" Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3457 or by e-mail at obm@obm.state.oh.us.
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer....
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments...........ccee.ee.
Collateral on Lent Securities
Deposit with Federal Government...
Taxes Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable...
Premiums and
Assessments Receivable...
Investment Trade Receivable
Loans Receivable, Net..............
Receivable from Primary Government...
Receivable from Component Units..
Other Receivables..
Inventories
OthEr ASSEES. ...ttt et e et e et e e an
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Collateral on Lent Securities..
Loans Receivable, Net....
Other Receivables.
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net..
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated

TOTAL ASSETS....oooiiiiiiiiiit s

Deferred OUtflOWS Of RESOUICES.........ccicuiiiiiiiiiiie et
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.............

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities

Medicaid Claims Payable

Obligations Under Securities Lending.

Investment Trade Payable

Intergovernmental Payable

Internal Balances...................

Payable to Primary Government..

Payable to Component Units.

Unearned Revenue

Benefits Payable

Refund and Other Liabilities...

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Bonds and Notes Payable:
Due in One Year
Due in More Than One Year

Certificates of Participation:
DU N ONE YA ......eiiiiiiiiiiieiiieite e
Due in More Than ONe YEar..........coiuiiiiiieiiiieiieeesiee st e e

Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

DUE IN ONE YA ... .eiiiiiie ittt
Due in More Than One Year..

TOTAL LIABILITIES.....ccoiiiiiiiiiiciicicii s

Deferred Inflows of Resources
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES....

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

]

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

6,930,670 $ 225503 $ 7,156,173 $ 561,622
123,145 455,359 578,504 1,490,163
601,389 22,529,389 23,130,778 7,243,375
978,638 29,802 1,008,440 75,151

— 177,795 177,795 —

1,595,721 — 1,595,721 —
1,471,936 10,322 1,482,258 82,115

— 3,887,981 3,887,981 —

— 194,429 194,429 —
1,158,587 — 1,158,587 301,881
— — — 23,248

3,767,380 — 3,767,380 —
591,225 425,229 1,016,454 1,210,315
105,839 42,921 148,760 89,362
109,001 25,604 134,605 670,488

— 20 20 —
967 89 1,056 1,201,187
518,050 1,169,714 1,687,764 2,248,024

— 188,436 188,436 —
— — — 4,539,481

321,654 2,158 323,812 —
2,277,682 124,846 2,402,528 9,112,431
23,333,861 19,318 23,353,179 1,894,118
43,885,745 29,508,915 73,394,660 30,742,961
59,117 — 59,117 1,881
43,944,862 29,508,015 73,453,777 30,744,842
601,021 63,459 664,480 572,937
305,756 3,189 308,945 447,080

1,089,155 — 1,089,155 —
978,638 218,238 1,196,876 75,151

— 302,143 302,143 —
1,285,622 1,659 1,287,281 1,012

707,614 (707,614) — —
_ _ — 3,766,898

23,248 — 23,248 —
497,827 1,738 499,565 513,130

— 19,297 19,297 —
750,743 81,680 832,423 98,977
1,328,060 15,914 1,343,974 986,224
16,780,700 15,719 16,796,419 8,268,512
21,689 — 21,689 490
134,975 — 134,975 2,845
129,976 2,828,895 2,958,871 516,674
711,831 20,096,034 20,807,865 1,100,483
25,346,855 22,940,351 48,287,206 16,350,413
— — — 23,424
25,346,855 22,940,351 48,287,206 16,373,837
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NET ASSETS:
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related DEDL..........ccoocviiiiiiiiiciie s
Restricted for:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education.
Public Assistance and Medicaid...
Health and Human Services..
Justice and Public Protection
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources....
Transportation
General Government
Community and Economic Development..
Deferred Lottery Prizes....
Workers Compensation...
Nonexpendable for
Colleges and UNIVEISILIES. ........cccuierriieiieeiiie e
Expendable for
Colleges and Universities
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS. ...ttt

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
22,147,262 67,331 22,214,593 5,973,417
129,353 — 129,353 312
219,153 — 219,153 —
101,056 — 101,056 —
29,516 — 29,516 —
148,200 — 148,200 —
2,613,620 — 2,613,620 —
93,089 — 93,089 —
245,631 — 245,631 3,150,752
— 123,724 123,724 —
— 7,760,634 7,760,634 —
_ _ — 3,099,430
— — — 2,177,668
(7,128,873) (1,383,125) (8,511,998) (30,574)
$ 18,598,007 $ 6,568,564 $ 25,166,571 $ 14,371,005
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES

OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS, GRANTS,
FOR CONTRIBUTIONS ~ CONTRIBUTIONS
SERVICES, AND AND
FEES, FINES RESTRICTED RESTRICTED NET
AND INVESTMENT INVESTMENT (EXPENSE)
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES FORFEITURES INCOME/(LOSS) INCOME/(LOSS) REVENUE
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Primary, Secondary
and Other EAUCAtioN...........cccvriviieiieiienieeiene $ 12,340,848 $ 27,154 $ 2,297,201 $ — $ (10,016,493)
Higher Education SUPPOrt ..........cccvevcveenieienieeenns 2,348,154 1,627 26,264 — (2,320,263)
Public Assistance and Medicaid .... 21,206,515 1,289,463 14,548,143 — (5,368,909)
Health and Human Services 3,835,369 515,014 2,374,038 — (946,317)
Justice and Public Protection ...........ccccevvvvvveeeeenns 3,202,970 943,142 200,793 79 (2,058,956)
Environmental Protection
and Natural Resources.. 407,379 211,818 85,964 23 (109,574)
Transportation 2,564,702 96,888 61,116 1,559,174 (847,524)
General GOVErNMENT .........uuueeeuriiiieiiiananeees 595,797 540,500 34,547 136 (20,614)
Community and Economic
DEVEIOPMENT. ...ttt 3,867,888 406,022 425,411 14,353 (3,022,102)
Interest on Long-Term Debt
(excludes interest charged as
Program eXPENSE)........ceevuveerureeriueeerreesereennnees 118,902 — — — (118,902)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.... 50,488,524 4,031,628 20,053,477 1,573,765 (24,829,654)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Workers' Compensation...........ccccvcveeerveerieeencneenns 1,945,190 1,958,593 2,043,644 — 2,057,047
Lottery Commission 2,001,671 2,781,737 79,105 — 859,171
Unemployment Compensation. 2,754,835 1,674,456 1,398,843 — 318,464
Ohio Building Authority...........ccccvevviieniieeniieeee. 13,010 15,485 2 — 2,477
Tuition Trust AUhOTItY........ccccvveriiiiiiciiceeeeen 80,157 11,325 46,495 — (22,337)
Liquor Control 543,729 791,454 — — 247,725
Underground Parking Garage.. 3,842 3,199 2 — (641)
Office of Auditor of State.......................ceeeel 69,183 46,897 — — (22,286)
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES................. 7,411,617 7,283,146 3,568,091 — 3,439,620
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT................ $ 57,900,141 $ 11,314,774 $ 23,621,568 $ 1,573,765 $ (21,390,034)
COMPONENT UNITS:
School Facilities Commission $ 280,494 $ 25,805 $ 4,465 $ — $ (250,224)
Ohio Water Development Authority... 157,844 145,136 98,370 — 85,662
Ohio State UNIVersity..........coveruiiieerieiieiieseenieenes 4,636,450 3,430,699 634,608 19,072 (552,071)
University of Cincinnati.............coccovevviiiniieiiiienns 1,065,223 611,959 264,327 10,352 (178,585)
Other Component UNits.........ccccooovveiiieiniiieiiinenns 5,222,552 3,087,341 548,158 40,411 (1,546,642)
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS......ccooviiiiiiiiiinnn $ 11,362,563 $ 7,300,940 $ 1,549,928 $ 69,835 $ (2,441,860)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIMITIES ACTIMITIES TOTAL UNITS
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
Net (EXPENSE) REVENUE.........cociiiriiiiieieiesiesie e $ (24,829,654) % 3,439,620 $ (21,390,034) $ (2,441,860)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
9,017,760 — 9,017,760 —
8,304,263 — 8,304,263 —
2,501,140 — 2,501,140 —
843,180 — 843,180 —
708,041 — 708,041 —
Restricted for Transportation Purposes:
Motor Vehicle FUel TaXeS.....coccvvveeiveieiiee e 1,800,473 — 1,800,473 —
TOtAl TAXES.c.ei ettt 23,174,857 — 23,174,857 —
Tobacco SettlemMEeNt.......c.eeicvvieccieeeee e 333,148 — 333,148 —
ESCheat Property.......ccoeeiieirereneseeeseees e 153,556 — 153,556 —
Unrestricted Investment Income 3,702 3 3,705 76,330
— — — 2,426,427
Other. e 48,078 5 48,083 754,393
Additions to Endowments
and Permanent Fund Principal — — — 73,462
Special Items — — — (2,960)
Transfers-Internal ACtiVItieS......ccoccocveiicii i, 949,952 (949,952) — —
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES,
CONTRIBUTIONS, SPECIAL ITEMS
AND TRANSFERS.......ooiiiit it 24,663,293 (949,944) 23,713,349 3,327,652
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS.....oooieeeeeceeevvee e (166,361) 2,489,676 2,323,315 885,792
NET ASSETS, JULY 1 (as restated)........cccccevereennne. 18,764,368 4,078,888 22,843,256 13,485,213
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30....ccceeiiiieeee e $ 18,598,007 $ 6,568,564 $ 25,166,571 $ 14,371,005
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STATE OF OHIO

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash Equity with Treasurer.......

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments.................

Collateral on Lent SECUNLIES........c.eeeeveieeiiie e

Taxes Receivable .......

Intergovernmental Receivable.............cccoouiiiiiiiiiin i

Loans Receivable, Net
Interfund Receivable ...

Receivable from Component UNitS..........cccceevueeiieenieeiieniiennnn.

Other Receivables .....
Inventories ..................
Other Assets ...............

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable .......
Accrued Liabilities........

Medicaid Claims Payable.............cccooeoiiiiiiiiiiieieee e

Obligations Under Securities Lending

Intergovernmental Payable............ccooeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee

Interfund Payable.........

Payable to Component UNItS..........cocerverieeniieniien e

Deferred Revenue.......

Unearned Revenue.....

Refund and Other Liabilities...........cccceccvvieiiiee e

Liability for Escheat Property

TOTAL LIABILITIES. ...

FUND BALANCES:

Nonspendable..........
Restricted.................
Committed................
Assigned..................

Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES.......ccooiiiieieeeeenne
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES......

MAJOR FUNDS

JOB, FAMILY AND
OTHER HUMAN

BUCKEYE
TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT
FINANCING
AUTHORITY

GENERAL SERVICES REVENUE BONDS
3,641,069 $ 331,164 $ —
90,367 2,934 968
533,588 — 518,050
515,042 46,670 —
1,502,090 — —
569,990 220,668 —
1,064,764 — —
67,550 — 858,906
1,054 — 3,766,326
178,378 334,960 321,654
31,307 — —
16,474 2,470 —
8,211,673 $ 938,866 $ 5,465,904
212,638 $ 97,484 % —
80,237 13,272 —
886,151 — —
515,042 46,670 —
866,811 127,599 —
1,437,010 15,343 —
16,528 886 —
245,981 90,586 321,616
7,375 346,940 —
745,963 3,974 —
7,944 — —
5,021,680 742,754 321,616
86,982 2,470 —
1,027,885 115,376 5,144,288
824,607 78,813 —
1,666,177 — —
(415,658) (547) —
3,189,993 196,112 5,144,288
8,211,673 $ 938,866 $ 5,465,904

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TOTAL
$ 2,958,437 6,930,670
29,843 124,112
67,801 1,119,439
416,926 978,638
93,631 1,595,721
681,278 1,471,936
93,823 1,158,587
1,114 927,570
— 3,767,380
77,887 912,879
74,532 105,839
14,342 33,286
$ 4,509,614 19,126,057
$ 290,899 601,021
47,063 140,572
203,004 1,089,155
416,926 978,638
291,212 1,285,622
182,831 1,635,184
5,834 23,248
143,498 801,681
141,574 495,889
700 750,637
— 7,944
1,723,541 7,809,591
84,221 173,673
2,218,816 8,506,365
483,036 1,386,456
— 1,666,177
— (416,205)
2,786,073 11,316,466
$ 4,509,614 19,126,057




[THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY]
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STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

JUNE 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

Total Fund Balances for Governmental FUNGS..........coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee et

Total net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets is different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Buildings and Improvements, net of $1,916,634 accumulated depreciation...
Land Improvements, net of $263,592 accumulated depreciation....................
Machinery and Equipment, net of $645,557 accumulated depreciation..............ccccccvvveeviivenienienns
Vehicles, net of $183,537 accumulated deprecCiation..............coouueieiiieeeiieee e eiee e sieee e
Infrastructure, net of $19,040 accumulated depreciation.
CONSITUCHON-IN-PrOGIESS. ... . eiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt ettt e et e e sttt e e bb e e e bt e e e sabe e e e anbeaeeanbeeeanbbeaeannes

Some of the State's revenues are collected after year-end but are not available soon enough to
pay for the current period's (within 60 days of year-end) expenditures, and therefore, are deferred
in the funds.

TAXES RECEIVADIE. ......eeiiii ettt e e e e e e e e e e e st e e e e e s e nntatneeeeeesnnntaneeaeean
Intergovernmental Receivable...
Other Receivables
(@1 [T X Y=Y £SO UUTRR PR

Unearned capitalized interest revenues are not financial resources, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Unamortized bond issue costs are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported
in the funds.

Deferred outflows of resources are not financial resources, and therefore, are not reported in the
funds.

The following liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Accrued Liabilities:
INEEIESE PAYADIE. ... .o e
Refunds and Other Liabilities...........c.uii it et
Bonds and Notes Payable:
General Obligation BONGS..........cuiiiiiiieeiiiie ettt ettt et e e b e s sab e e e st e e e enbeeeesnbeaeaaneeaeans
Revenue Bonds and Notes.. e
Special Obligation Bonds....
Certificates Of PartiCIPation............ooi i
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences..
Net Pension Obligation..... .
NEt OPEB OBIIGALION. .......tiiiiiiieiiitee ettt et e e e et e e e eaneees
Capital Leases Payable..........coouiiiiiiie e
Derivatives
Estimated Claims Payable
Pollution Remediation, net of liabilities reported as accounts payable in the funds
and recoveries reported above as other receivables............ccceviviiiiiii
Liability for Escheat Property

Total Net Assets of Governmental ACHIVITIES........uuviii i

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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11,316,466

2,154,598
1,686,151
185,119
247,555
139,444
19,829,190
1,369,486

25,611,543

127,692
267,141
402,193

4,655
801,681

(1,938)

75,715

59,117

(165,184)
(106)

(8,888,085)
(7,129,786)
(2,090,889)

(156,664)

(440,410)
(8,389)
(83,911)
(4,199)
(81,818)
(3,030)

(3,129)
(208,977)

(19,264,577)
18,598,007



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)
MAJOR FUNDS

BUCKEYE
TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT
JOB, FAMILY AND FINANCING
OTHER HUMAN AUTHORITY
GENERAL SERVICES REVENUE BONDS
REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES .. .evee e ettt et ee e et et e e e e e e e e eeee e $ 9,063,827 $ — $ —
SAIES TAXES. .. ciieeeee et 8,297,544 — —
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes.........cccceevvvveiinieinnnene 2,499,601 — —
Motor Vehicle FUel TaxXesS..........veevviiiiiiiiiiiieeieee e, 1,104,127 — —
Cigarette TAXES.....ccovviieiirieiiiie et 843,180 — —
(@)1 [T = V=TT 670,831 — —
Licenses, Permits and FEES...........ccuuvviviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieees 781,717 1,083,504 —
Sales, Services and Charges..........ccccovvveiniiieiiieeniieenins 64,025 25 —
Federal GOVErNMENt..........occuvuiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e 7,131,978 7,700,326 —
Tobacco Settlement. — — 294,592
Escheat Property.. 151,601 — —
Investment Income... 19,654 4,724 667
. 300,150 247,826 —
TOTAL REVENUES........cooiiiiiiiiiiiee i 30,928,235 9,036,405 295,259
EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT OPERATING:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education......................... 8,861,567 205 60,360
Higher Education Support............cccccoeveenne 2,175,814 2,522 —
Public Assistance and Medicaid. . 12,345,815 8,828,754 —
Health and HUMaN SErVICES............cvveiiiiiiiiiieieeeeiiies 1,001,228 391,373 —
Justice and Public Protection...........ccceevveiiiiiieiieciiieiiinns 2,309,533 69,433 —
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources............. 65,552 — —
TraNSPOrtAtION. ........eeiiiieeiiiee et 10,451 — —
General GOVEIMMENT..........uuuieeiiiiiiiee e 409,916 3,176 —
Community and Economic Development.............cccoceeenne 2,792,961 50 —
CAPITAL OQUTLAY cettiiiiee ettt a e — 229 —
DEBT SERVICE.......cciiiiiiiiiiiieeeiiiieee et siinee e — — 295,169
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........ccviiiieiiiiiiiiee e 29,972,837 9,295,742 355,529
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES...........ccooviiiiiienne. 955,398 (259,337) (60,270)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bonds, Notes, and Certificates of Participation Issued...... 1,109,228 15,732 —
Refunding Bonds Issued..............ccocoveinnneene — — —
Payment to Refunded Bond Escrow Agents.............ccc..... — — —
Premiums/DiSCOoUNtS.........cccoeeeevvvivvieeeeeennnns 60,983 — —
Capital Leases......... 560 — —
TraANSTEIS-IN....cciiiiii i 314,048 20,207 —
TranSErS-0UL..........eiiiiiiiiiiie e (1,472,254) (969) (13,855)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES).......... 12,565 34,970 (13,855)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES..........ccccviiieeiiiiieenn, 967,963 (224,367) (74,125)
FUND BALANCES, JUIY 1 ..o 2,223,608 420,479 5,218,413
Increase (Decrease) for Changes in Inventories............... (1,578) — —
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30......cccvciiiiieiieiiiiie e, $ 3,189,993 $ 196,112 $ 5,144,288

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TOTAL

$ 12,457  $ 9,076,284
7,161 8,304,705
1,304 2,500,905
696,346 1,800,473
— 843,180
37,210 708,041
1,136,951 3,002,172
32,932 96,982
6,563,548 21,395,852
1,144 295,736
— 151,601
5,076 30,121
543,789 1,091,765
9,037,918 49,297,817
3,006,390 11,928,522
32,211 2,210,547
36,782 21,211,351
2,330,483 3,723,084
694,896 3,073,862
324,922 390,474
2,500,291 2,510,742
112,614 525,706
924,149 3,717,160
377,754 377,983
1,212,575 1,507,744
11,553,067 51,177,175
(2,515,149) (1,879,358)
232,680 1,357,640
1,374,660 1,374,660
(1,604,658) (1,604,658)
318,523 379,506
— 560
2,468,815 2,803,070
(366,040) (1,853,118)
2,423,980 2,457,660
(91,169) 578,302
2,860,682 10,723,182
16,560 14,982
$ 2,786,073 $ 11,316,466




STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances -- Total Governmental Funds
Change iN INVENTOTIES. ...t e e e e

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the Statement of
Activities is different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital Outlay EXPENItUIES. ......coiiiiiiiiiiiie et e et ea e e
DepPreCiation EXPENSE. ......ciiii ittt e e e e e e

Excess of Capital Outlay Over Depreciation EXPENnSe..........cccceeeeviiiieeeenaennne

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. In
the current period, proceeds were received from:

General Obligation BONAS..........cooiiiiiiiiee e aaaaee s
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Special Obligation BONAS..........cccciiiiiiiiiiiie e
Refunding Bonds, including Bond Premium/Discount, Net.............ccccccceeiiinninee
Premiums and Discounts, Net:

General Obligation BONGS. ..o
Special Obligation BONAS...........coiiiiiiiiiiee et

Deferred RefUNAING LOSS.....coiiiiiiiiiiieiie et
Capitalized Interest
(OFT o1 =1l T L SRR

Total DEDt PrOCEEAS. ... .uuuietiiiiiti e aanneannnnnnes

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Assets. In the current year, these amounts consist of:

Debt Principal Retirement and Defeasements:
General Obligation Bonds........
Revenue Bonds and Notes

Special Obligation BONAS...........coiiiiiiiiiiee et

Certificates of PartiCiPation...........c..ueeeiiiiiiiiiee e

Capital Lease PaymMeENtS..........uvuiiieieiiiiiiiiie e st e st e e e e e eiaaaeeaa e e

Total Long-Term Debt REPAYMENT........cooiii i
Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are deferred in the governmental funds. Deferred revenues

decreased by this amount this year.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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578,302
14,982
593,284

347,099

(295,234)

51,865

(1,130,910)
(194,030)
(32,700)
(1,612,962)

(138,370)
(2,835)
63,498
(1,938)
(560)

(3,050,807)

1,520,311
263,155
440,690

22,180
2,891

2,249,227

(27,680)



Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities are not reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds. Under the modified accrual basis of
accounting used in the governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for
transactions that are not normally paid with expendable available financial
resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, which is presented on the
accrual basis, expenses and liabilities are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term debt is not
recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than
as it accrues. This adjustment combines the changes in the following balances:

Decrease in Bond Issue Costs Included in Other ASSets........ccccccoeiiiiiieeeneennne
Decrease in Accrued Interest and Other Accrued Liabilities............ccoccceevnneen.
Amortization of Bond Premiums/Accretion of Bond Discount, Net.....................
Amortization of Deferred Refunding LOSS.........c.vvviiieeiiiiiiiiiiieee e
Decrease in Compensated ADSENCES........cocuuuiiiiieaaiiiieiee e
Increase in Derivative Liabilities (Excluding Hedging Derivatives) ...................
Decrease in Estimated Claims Payable.............occiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeee e
Decrease in Pollution Remediation..........
Increase in Net Pension Obligation...................
Increase in Liability for OPEB Obligation
Decrease in Liability for Escheat Property..........ccccoi oo

Total additional eXPENAITUrES..........uuvviiieiiiiiiiiie e

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities........ccccccceeiiiiiiiieri e,
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(2,298)
29,818
40,146

(34,508)
23,667
(28,699)

7,355

1,722
(4,090)
(17,318)

1,955

$

17,750

(166,361)



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
GENERAL FUND AND MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

REVENUES:
Income Taxes.
Sales Taxes
Corporate and Public Utility Taxes
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes
Cigarette Taxes,
Other Taxes......c.ccoovvvnenne
Licenses, Permits and Fees
Sales, Services and Charges
Federal Government
Tobacco Settlement
Investment Income...

BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES:

CURRENT OPERATING:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education
Higher Education Support
Public Assistance and Medicaid
Health and Human Services
Justice and Public Protection..........cc.cooieiiiinenene e
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources
Transportation
General Government.
Community and Economic Development.
(07N = Y @ 1 I N R
DEBT SERVICE
TOTAL BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) BUDGETARY EXPENDITURES.............

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bonds and NOES ISSUEM.........cccererirerinininie e
Transfers-in

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JULY Lttt
Outstanding Encumbrances at Beginning of Fiscal Year........

BUDGETARY FUND BALANCES
(DEFICITS), JUNE 30.....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiniisne s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

GENERAL
VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET
POSITIVE/
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)
8,730,791 $ 8,730,791 $ 9,017,200 $ 286,409
8,066,181 8,066,181 8,284,383 218,202
2,593,194 2,593,194 2,484,118 (109,076)
1,044,462 1,044,462 1,044,462 —
818,300 818,300 843,180 24,880
691,399 691,399 670,014 (21,385)
933,283 933,283 939,026 5,743
78,831 78,831 77,585 (1,246)
7,691,759 7,691,759 7,451,970 (239,789)
— — 1,062 1,062
13,719 13,719 10,616 (3,103)
1,942,609 1,942,609 1,333,929 (608,680)
32,604,528 32,604,528 32,157,545 (446,983)
8,556,929 8,563,262 8,499,215 64,047
2,716,848 2,716,848 2,367,832 349,016
13,675,434 13,672,566 13,257,107 415,459
1,225,099 1,227,309 1,152,899 74,410
2,695,793 2,715,210 2,593,250 121,960
112,152 113,497 96,787 16,710
16,710 16,710 16,563 147
901,562 924,820 798,667 126,153
3,990,706 4,108,167 3,351,083 757,084
748,150 763,775 671,869 91,906
34,639,383 34,822,164 32,805,272 2,016,892
(2,034,855) (2,217,636) (647,727) 1,569,909
555,250 555,250 555,250 —
1,442,727 1,442,727 1,241,753 (200,974)
(2,122,822) (2,122,822) (1,745,399) 377,423
(124,845) (124,845) 51,604 176,449
(2,159,700) $  (2,342,481) (596,123) $ 1,746,358
1,813,859
1,115,349
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JOB, FAMILY AND OTHER HUMAN SERVICES

VARIANCE
WITH
FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET

POSITIVE/
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL (NEGATIVE)

1,824
1,093,781
25
4,554,038
4,724
776,159
6,430,551

229 % 229 209 $ 20

3,500 3,500 3,335 165
8,412,470 8,482,219 6,988,091 1,494,128
435,303 464,646 405,095 59,551
85,676 86,954 72,023 14,931

3,534 3,534 2,828 706
180 230 230 -
6,861 6,861 718 6,143

8,947,753 $ 9,048,173 7472529 $ 1,575,644

(1,041,978)

15,732
23,302
(7,967)
31,067

(1,010,911)

(1,118,055)
1,454,817

$ (674,149)
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE
JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash EqUIty With TreaSUIer.........cciiiiiiiiii et
Cash and Cash Equivalents....
Collateral on Lent Securities...
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer.
Investments
Collateral on Lent Securities...
Other Receivables
Deposit with Federal Government.
Intergovernmental Receivable....
Premiums and Assessments Receivable..
Investment Trade Receivable..
Interfund Receivable
Other Receivables...
Inventories......
Other Assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS....coiiiiiiieieieie e ee e see e nee s

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash EqQUIVAIENLES.........ccccoiiiiiiiiiieieee e
Investments....
Investments...........ccoeevnnee
Premiums and Assessments Receivable..
Interfund Receivable
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net...
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated....
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS... .ot

LIABILITIES:

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable....
Accrued Liabilities....
Obligations Under Securities Lending....
Investment Trade Payable
Intergovernmental Payable..............cccoiiiiiiiiiiieii e
Deferred Prize Awards Payable....
Interfund Payable
Unearned Revenue
Benefits Payable
Refund and Other Liabilities.............ccccooiiiiiiiiiii
Bonds and Notes Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES...

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Intergovernmental Payable..............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiei e
Deferred Prize Awards Payable....
Interfund Payable
Benefits Payable..........cccuoiiiiiiiiiii e
Refund and Other Liabilities
Bonds and Notes Payable
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES. ..ottt

TOTAL LIABILITIES......ooiiiiiiiiiicii s

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS):
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt...........ccccovviriiiiiniciccic s
Restricted for Deferred Lottery Prizes.
Unrestricted....

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICITS)...

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
3262 $ 92,608 $ —
438,920 13,717 —
849 13,051 —
— 46,230 —
— 188,436 —
— 2,158 —
— — 177,795
— — 14
809,703 — 34,179
194,429 — —
74,786 1,518 —
281,900 51,151 77,621
9,284 10,150 5,557
1,813,133 419,039 295,166
89 — —
— 680,611 —
22,432,903 — —
3,044,099 — —
637,633 — —
69,332 48,089 —
19,318 — —
26,203,374 728,700 —
28,016,507 1,147,739 295,166
11,767 4542 —
849 201,487 —
302,143 — —
— — 1,659
— 48,397 —
— 153 —
— 993 —
2,024,705 — 19,296
424,351 64,714 8,719
15,914 — —
2,779,729 320,286 29,674
— — 1,878,387
— 557,821 —
— 2,542 —
15,790,395 — —
1,612,925 28,589 —
15,719 — —
17,419,039 588,052 1,878,387
20,198,768 909,238 1,908,061
57,105 2,801 —
— 123,724 —
7,760,634 111,976 (1,612,895)
7817739 $ 238501 $  (1,612,895)




NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY
FUNDS

TOTAL

$ 129,633 225,503
2,722 455,359
15,902 29,802
— 20
84,000 130,230
— 188,436

— 2,158

— 177,795
10,308 10,322
— 843,882

— 194,429
1,498 77,802
14,557 425,229
42,921 42,921
613 25,604
302,154 2,829,492
— 89
358,873 1,039,484
96,486 22,529,389
— 3,044,099
8,576 646,209
7,425 124,846
— 19,318
471,360 27,403,434
773,514 30,232,926
47,150 63,459
3,189 3,189
15,902 218,238
— 302,143

—_ 1,659

—_ 48,397
3,579 3,732
745 1,738
84,000 2,128,001
5,683 503,467
— 15,914
160,248 3,289,937
—_ 1,878,387

—_ 557,821
10,123 12,665
469,000 16,259,395
8,924 1,650,438
— 15,719
488,047 20,374,425
648,295 23,664,362
7,425 67,331
—_ 123,724
117,794 6,377,509
$ 125,219 6,568,564
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and ServiCes..........cccueueieriieiiiiiee e
Premium and Assessment INCOME.........ccccceeeevvviveeeeeesscniienennn.
Federal GOVErNMENL..........ccoviiiiiiiiiiie e e

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and Services
ADMINISTration.........coooeeeeiiiiiie

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INVEStMENL INCOME......covviiiii e

TRANSFERS:
I = 10 ) 1= T
TraNSTEIS-0UL.......ueiiieeiiiiiiee e
TOTAL TRANSFERS......ooii ettt

NET INCOME.......ooiiiiiiii i

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS), JULY 1 ...
NET ASSETS (DEFICITS), JUNE 30.......ccccooiiiiiiiiicieeee

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
$ — 8 2,775,102 $ 21,082
1,944,478 — 1,516,946
— — 1,431,841
14,115 6,635 102,530
1,958,593 2,781,737 3,073,299
58,161 86,903 —
— 179,402 —
— 1,680,790 —
1,832,992 — 2,752,427
10,666 20,557 —
43,371 18 —
1,945,190 1,967,670 2,752,427
13,403 814,067 320,872
2,043,644 79,105 —
— (2,936) —
— (31,065) (2,408)
2,043,644 45,104 (2,408)
2,057,047 859,171 318,464
95 — —
(11,405) (771,364) (4,622)
(11,310) (771,364) (4,622)
2,045,737 87,807 313,842
5,772,002 150,694 (1,926,737)
$ 7,817,739 $ 238501 $  (1,612,895)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL

$ 866,201 $ 3,663,285
— 3,461,424

— 1,431,841

6,896 6,896
41,758 165,038
914,855 8,728,484
549,301 549,301
91,746 236,810

— 179,402

— 1,680,790
66,760 4,652,179
1,405 32,628

690 44,079
709,902 7,375,189
204,953 1,353,295

7 2,122,756
— (2,936)
(14) (33,487)

@) 2,086,333

204,946 3,439,628
26,430 26,525
(189,086) (976,477)
(162,656) (949,952)
42,290 2,489,676
82,929 4,078,888

$ 125219 $ 6,568,564
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from CUSIOMENS. ..........ocieeee e e eee e ee e eee e $ — $ 2,740,695 $ —
Cash Received from Multi-State Lottery for Grand Prize Winner................... — 65,382 —
Cash Received from Premiums and ASSESSMENtS...........ccoevvveveieieieieieieieeenes 2,009,871 — 1,530,615
Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided..............cccccoeeeeiiiiil 64,135 3,130 —
Other Operating Cash RECEIPLS. .......ccoiiiiiiiieiiie e 43,183 28,555 45,125
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (44,999) (60,625) —
Cash Payments to Employees for Services... (214,655) (25,266) —
Cash Payments for Benefits and Claims.... . (1,988,923) — (2,478,022)
Cash Payments for LOttery PrizesS.........coooiiiiiiiiiiie e — (1,815,895) —
Cash Payments for Bonuses and COMMISSIONS...........ccoieieriiieeiiieeiiiee e — (179,402) —
Cash Payments for Premium Reductions and Refunds............ccccocoeeiiinnnnns (59,620) — —
Cash Payments for Interfund Services USed............ccccooveiiiiiiiiieeiniieeiieeee (15,944) (4,188) —
Other Operating Cash Payments...........ccccioiuiiaiiiieiiiee e — (18) (253,221)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. ...ttt (206,952) 752,368 (1,155,503)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
TTANSTEIS-IN Lottt ne e nees 95 — —
Transfers-out ... (11,405) (771,364) (4,622)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.....ccoiiirieriiiienienieieeeeeeie e (11,310) (771,364) (4,622)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds, Notes, and Capital Leases.............cccocevvvenne (15,890) (18,156) —
INTEIESE PAI ...t (2,326) (2,652) —
Acquisition and Construction of Capital ASSELS ........cccerierieiiiiniiiniieeeees (8,525) (1,333) —
Proceeds from Sales of Capital ASSELS ........cccerviriiiiiiiiiiieieeese e 125 108 —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES.......ccccoenieiiieienens (26,616) (22,033) —
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESIMENTS........ccuiiiiiiiiii et (15,348,352) (83,689) (1,513,249)
Proceeds from the Sales and Maturities of Investments 14,969,317 143,027 2,673,374
Investment Income Received ...........cccocveveveiiiinnenns 728,662 9,688 —
Borrower Rebates and AgeNt FEES......c.cuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiicieeceee e (7,989) (308) —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ...ttt 341,638 68,718 1,160,125
NET INCREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS.......ccooiiiiiienieieieeene 96,760 27,689 —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 oot 345,511 78,656 —
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 ....ccooriiieiirienieiieieniesie s $ 442,271 $ 106,345 $ —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
$ 832,647 $ 3,573,342
—_ 65,382
—_ 3,540,486
11,714 78,979
12,695 129,558
(530,780) (636,404)
(92,566) (332,487)
—_ (4,466,945)
— (1,815,895)
— (179,402)
— (59,620)
(7,214) (27,346)
(67,307) (320,546)
159,189 (450,898)
27,027 27,122
(159,923) (947,314)
(132,896) (920,192)
— (34,046)
— (4,978)
(1,070) (10,928)
4 237
(1,066) (49,715)
(384,667) (17,329,957)
441,754 18,227,472
13,141 751,491
— (8,297)
70,228 1,640,709
95,455 219,904
36,900 461,067
$ 132,355 $ 680,971
(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

(continued)

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

OPErating INCOME.......coiuiiiiiiii ittt

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Investment Income...

Depreciation .........c.cceeeeiiieiiieinens

Provision for Uncollectible ACCOUNES.........c.cceiveiieiieiiinicciceceiceiee
Amortization of Premiums and DiSCOUNES...........coverierivenienivenieeieeiens
Interest on Bonds, Notes, and Capital Leases..........ccccceevevvenvenvennnns

Decrease (Increase) in Assets:

Deposit with Federal GOVErnNMENt...........cccoveeriverieiiesiesiesieeieeens
Intergovernmental Receivable............cocvviiiiiiiiiinici e
Premiums and Assessments Receivable............cccccoocvvviiriiicnnenn,
Interfund ReCEIVADI........ccoiiiiiicii e
Other ReCEIVADIES .......cocoiiiiiiiiiiie e

Inventories ...........
Other Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:

ACCOUNES PAyable ..........cccouiiiiiiiiiiee e
Accrued Liabilities. ...

Intergovernmental Payable.......
Deferred Prize Awards Payable
Interfund Payable..................

Unearned REVENUE ........cceieiiiie e cie e see s see e see e
Benefits Payable..........cooiiiii e
Refund and Other LiabilitieS........c..coiveiiiieeiiie e

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Fair Value of INVeStMENLS..........cccevviriiriiiieiie e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
$ 13,403  $ 814,067 $ 320,872
10,666 20,557 —
47,540 — —
(366) — —
2,326 — —
— — (1,137,150)
— — 81
(248) — (2,040)
9,541 (1,518) —
(48,056) (7,062) (57,433)
138 (1,966) 529
4,048 (2,239) —
— — (295,664)
— (67,894) —
— (196) —
— (776) —
(197,500) — 17,638
(48,444) (605) (2,336)
$ (206,952) $ 752,368 $  (1,155,503)
$ 1323434 $ 56,878 $ —



NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
$ 204953 $ 1,353,295
(6,896) (6,896)
1,405 32,628
— 47,540
(3) (369)
— 2,326
— (1,137,150)
(664) (583)
— (2,288)
602 8,625
(10,714) (123,265)
(4,388) (4,388)
172 (1,127)
17,404 19,213
(1,938) (1,938)
— (295,664)
— (67,894)
(471) (667)
(147) (923)
(39,599) (219,461)
(527) (51,912)
$ 159,189  $ (450,898)
$ — $ 1,380,312
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash Equity With TreaSUIEr..........ccvveiviiiiiiiieeeiiiiiieee e

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments (at fair value):

U.S. Government and Agency Obligations.............cccuvveeeeeennnnnns

Common and Preferred Stock....
Corporate Bonds and Notes......
Foreign Stocks and Bonds.........
Commercial Paper...............
Repurchase Agreements.....

Mutual Funds.............cc
REAI ESLAe. ... ..

Venture Capital..........cc..........
Direct Mortgage Loans

Partnership and Hedge Funds............ccccccvevviiiiiiiene e,

State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio)

Collateral on Lent SECUNLIES. .......ccvvivviiieieeiiiiiiieeee e
Employer Contributions Receivable..............ccccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiee.

Employee Contributions Receivable....

Other ReCEIVADIES...........uuui
(O 11 g T=T AT Y= £
Capital ASSetS, Net......cooiiiieiiiee e

TOTAL ASSETS....oiiiiii

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable...........ccouvviiiiiiii e

Accrued Liabilities...........ccoceeviiieinineene
Obligations Under Securities Lending
Investment Trade Payable......................
Intergovernmental Payable..................

Refund and Other Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES......ooiiiiiiiii

NET ASSETS:
Held in Trust for:

Employees' Pension Benefits..........cccovvveeiiiiiiiiiiie e

Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments...................
POOI PartiCipantS.........cooouvviiiieeiiiiieeee e

TOTAL NET ASSETS......oiiiiii i

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PRIVATE-
PENSION PURPOSE INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST TRUST
STATE HIGHWAY
PATROL
RETIREMENT VARIABLE
SYSTEM COLLEGE
(as of 12/31/11) SAVINGS PLAN STAR OHIO
— $ — —
10,641 106,275 243,173
25,167 — 1,505,194
141,527 — —
45,891 — 53,326
8,018 — —
— — 646,345
435,868 6,268,606 281,073
32,318 — —
961 — —
668 — —
446 4,063 618
52 — —
16 — —
701,573 6,378,944 2,729,729
590 — —
21,524 2,371 —
— — 89,879
54 3,677 191
22,168 6,048 90,070
583,569 — —
95,836 — —
— 6,372,896 —
— — 2,639,659
679,405 $ 6,372,896 2,639,659




AGENCY

336,309
96,038

15,204,046
46,008,054
12,537,449
38,173,652
4,919,104
309,687
8,517,609
15,166,436
12,429,471
5,667,515
3,737,695
64,219
46,999

1,288
437,151

163,652,722

46,999
153,268
163,452,455

163,652,722
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(dollars in thousands)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions from:
EMPIOYET. ...
EMPIOYEES. ..o
Plan PartiCipantS..........ccoecuivierieeeieiiiieree e e e e e

Investment Income:
Net Appreciation (Depreciation)
in Fair Value of Investments.........cccooooovvvvvieeeeeeeeeeeiinnnn.
Interest, Dividends and Other.............cccccceieieii,

Total Investment INCOME............ccverciiiiieniicireee e
Less: Investment Expense

Net Investment INCOME..........cooeiiiiiiiiiie e

Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions:
Shares Sold.........ooviiiiiiiiii
Reinvested Distributions.............ceieeeiiiiiiiieeeeeeeiieieeeeee
Shares Redeemed...........ccccocveviiiiiiicniic i

Net Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions......
TOTAL ADDITIONS. ...,

DEDUCTIONS:
Pension Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries........
Healthcare Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries....
Refunds of Employee Contributions...................
Administrative EXpense...........cccevvvveveeeiiiiiinnnnn.
Transfers to Other Retirement Systems
Distributions to Shareholders and Plan Participants............

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS........cviiiiiiieniiee e,

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS HELD FOR:
Employees' Pension Benefits. ...
Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits...............
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments.............
PoOl PartiCipants...........ccouiiiiiiieiee s

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS......cccoiviiiiiiieiiie,
NET ASSETS, JULY 1 ..o,
NET ASSETS, JUNE 30.....cccceiiiiiiiiiiiiieiine i

PRIVATE-
PENSION PURPOSE INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST TRUST
STATE HIGHWAY
PATROL
RETIREMENT
SYSTEM VARIABLE
(for the fiscal year COLLEGE
ended 12/31/11) SAVINGS PLAN STAR OHIO
$ 24,589 — $ —
8,349 — i
— 1,618,925 —
2,678 — —
35,616 1,618,925 —
(25,842) (82,005) —
11,696 144,188 3,274
(14,146) 62,183 3,274
4,992 28,555 2,062
(19,138) 33,628 1,212
— — 10,248,745
— — 1,212
_ — (10,726,260)
_ — (476,303)
16,478 1,652,553 (475,091)
55,638 — —
12,361 — —
452 — i
1,107 — —
1,798 — —
— 1,358,163 1,212
71,356 1,358,163 1,212
(43,299) — _
(11,579) — —
— 294,390 —
_ — (476,303)
(54,878) 294,390 (476,303)
734,283 6,078,506 3,115,962
$ 679,405 6,372,896 $ 2,639,659

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

46



STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer....
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Collateral on Lent Securities
Intergovernmental Receivable
Loans Receivable, Net
Receivable from Primary Government...
Other Receivables..
Inventories.....
Other Assets.....

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS.

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTS..........ccciiiiiiiriieiee et
Investments
Loans Receivable, Net.
Investments...................
Loans Receivable, Net..
Other Receivables..
Other Assets...........
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net..
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS
Deferred Outflows of Resources...
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES................

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
ACCOUNES Pay@ble........coiuiiiiiiiiiiiiciee e
Accrued Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities Lending.
Intergovernmental Payable
Unearned Revenue
Refund and Other Liabilities
Bonds and Notes Payable...
Certificates of Participation.....
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES....
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Intergovernmental Payable.
Unearned Revenue
Refund and Other Liabilities
Payable to Primary Governmen
Bonds and Notes Payable
Certificates of Participation
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES..
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Deferred Inflows of Resources..
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES..............

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS):
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted for:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education...
Community and Economic Development....
Nonexpendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships..
Research
Endowments and Quasi-Endowments
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes
Expendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships..
Research
Instructional Department Uses....
Student and Public Services.
Academic Support.
Debt Service.......
Capital Purposes...
Endowments and Quasi-Endowments..
Current Operations...........ccceevevervrcenenns
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS (DEFICITS).....coiiiiiiiiniiiciicice s

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

OHIO WATER
SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT OHIO
FACILITIES AUTHORITY STATE
COMMISSION (as of 12/31/11) UNIVERSITY
$ 511,746 $ — 3 —
— 37,003 601,095
— 58,312 738,866
72,119 — —
— 614 22,021
541 2,739 24,625
— — 2,439
_ 5 496,088
— — 57,612
a1 — 26,024
584,447 08,763 1,968,770
— 209,883 714,226
— 1,296,789 —
— 4,539,481 —
— 11,473 2,442,802
2,941 63,391 48,585
— 6,811 46,555
— 68,454 —
19 973 2,855,278
23,171 539 987,073
26,131 6,197,794 7,094,519
610,578 6,296,557 9,063,289
610,578 6,296,557 9,063,289
8,880 73,390 256,639
223 10,626 185,526
72,119 — —
296,307 — —
— — 231,545
127 — 78,781
— 212,328 549,175
— — 490
377,656 296,344 1,302,156
211,591 — —
797 220 357,439
3,766,326 — —
— 2,731,070 1,909,563
— — 2,845
3,078,714 2,731,290 2,269,847
4,356,370 3,027,634 3,572,003
4,356,370 3,027,634 3,572,003
23,190 1,512 2,079,926
— 3,085,749 —
_ — 1,200,473
— — 2,437
— — 104,992
— — 495,679
(3,768,982) 181,662 1,607,779
$ (3,745792) $ 3,268923 $ 5,491,286
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UNIVERSITY NONMAJOR
OF COMPONENT
CINCINNATI UNITS TOTAL
— 3 49,876 561,622
115,109 736,866 1,490,163
197,700 1,660,939 2,655,817
— 3,032 75,151
— 59,480 82,115
6,459 22,891 57,255
525 20,284 23,248
66,392 434,545 997,030
2,272 29,478 89,362
19,162 65,018 110,245
407,619 3,082,409 6,142,008
— 277,078 1,201,187
120,021 831,214 2,248,024
— — 4,539,481
757,502 1,375,781 4,587,558
25,434 104,275 244,626
36,663 123,256 213,285
424,634 67,155 560,243
1,246,560 5,009,601 9,112,431
214,509 668,826 1,894,118
2,825,323 8,457,186 24,600,953
3,232,942 11,539,595 30,742,961
— 1,881 1,881
3,232,942 11,541,476 30,744,842
60,109 173,919 572,937
47,849 202,856 447,080
— 3,032 75,151
— 1,012 297,319
31,428 269,923 532,896
80,231 140,439 299,578
124,648 100,073 986,224
— — 490
344,265 891,254 3,211,675
25,168 8,318 245,077
— 3,385 3,385
115,499 378,066 852,021
— 572 3,766,898
934,357 2,693,522 8,268,512
— — 2,845
1,075,024 3,083,863 13,138,738
1,419,289 3,975,117 16,350,413
— 23,424 23,424
1,419,289 3,998,541 16,373,837
383,662 3,485,127 5,973,417
— 312 312
— 65,003 3,150,752
116,924 117,686 234,610
45513 11,064 56,577
391,367 704,464 2,296,304
425,893 86,046 511,939
52,843 167,653 220,496
97,377 18,318 115,695
35,155 92,699 127,854
39,795 17,506 57,301
29,338 184,030 213,368
2,452 21,294 23,746
12,951 135,567 150,955
70,079 276,488 451,559
(4,757) 61,875 552,797
43,290 220,607 263,897
71,771 1,877,196 (30,574)
1813653 $ 7,542,935 14,371,005
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(dollars in thousands)

EXPENSES:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education
Community and Economic Development

Cost of Services

Administration.......................

Education and General:
Instruction and Departmental Research
Separately Budgeted Research
Public Service....................
Academic Support
Student Services

PROGRAM REVENUES:

Charges for Services, Fees, Fines and Forfeitures............

Operating Grants, Contributions
and Restricted Investment Income
Capital Grants, Contributions
and Restricted Investment Income

TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES
NET PROGRAM (EXPENSE) REVENUE

GENERAL REVENUES:

ADDITIONS TO ENDOWMENTS
AND PERMANENT FUND PRINCIPAL
SPECIAL ITEMS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated).............

NET ASSETS (DEFICITS), JUNE 30

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS

OHIO WATER
DEVELOPMENT
SCHOOL AUTHORITY OHIO
FACILITIES (for the year ended STATE
COMMISSION 12/31/11) UNIVERSITY

280,391 $ — —

— 145,760 —

— 10,878 —
— — 880,042
— — 447,213
— — 109,714
— — 162,783
— — 90,493
— — 224,377
— — 105,346
— — 110,748
— — 239,570
— — 1,964,039
— — 59,734
103 116 242,391

— 1,090 —
280,494 157,844 4,636,450
25,805 145,136 3,430,699
4,465 98,370 634,608
— — 19,072
30,270 243,506 4,084,379
(250,224) 85,662 (552,071)
— 468 60,177
675,321 — 470,494
— — 220,683
675,321 468 751,354
— — 41,299
425,097 86,130 240,582
(4,170,889) 3,182,793 5,250,704
(3,745,792) $ 3,268,923 5,491,286




UNIVERSITY NONMAJOR
OF COMPONENT
CINCINNATI UNITS TOTAL

— 15284 $ 295,675
— 24,643 24,643
— — 145,760
— — 10,878
268,935 1,640,414 2,789,391
167,694 230,752 845,659
57,708 125,206 292,628
97,441 424,370 684,594
43,260 230,862 364,615
101,797 510,412 836,586
49,854 324,877 480,077
38,104 305,212 454,064
83,992 609,318 932,880
— 290,262 2,254,301
44,218 105,257 209,209
100,413 318,388 661,411
11,807 67,295 80,192
1,065,223 5,222,552 11,362,563
611,959 3,087,341 7,300,940
264,327 548,158 1,549,928
10,352 40,411 69,835
886,638 3,675,910 8,920,703
(178,585) (1,546,642) (2,441,860)
— 15,685 76,330
192,347 1,088,265 2,426,427
4,397 529,313 754,393
196,744 1,633,263 3,257,150
697 31,466 73,462
— (2,960) (2,960)
18,856 115,127 885,792
1,794,797 7,427,808 13,485,213
1,813,653 7542935 $ 14,371,005
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Fﬂ STATE OF OHIO
-~ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2012

NOTE1l SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of June 30, 2012, and for the year then ended,
conform with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles, which are included in the GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards. The State’s significant accounting policies are as follows.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The State of Ohio’s primary government includes all funds, elected officials, departments and agencies, bureaus,
boards, commissions, and authorities that make up the State’s legal entity. Component units, legally separate
organizations for which the State’s elected officials are financially accountable, also comprise, in part, the State’s
reporting entity. Additionally, other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with
the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete should be included in a government’s financial reporting entity.

GASB Statement No. 14 (GASB 14), The Financial Reporting Entity, defines financial accountability. The criteria
for determining financial accountability include the following circumstances:

e appointment of a voting majority of an organization's governing authority and the ability of the primary
government to either impose its will on that organization or the potential for the organization to provide
specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, or

e an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government.

1. Blended Component Units

The Ohio Building Authority, the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority, and the State Highway Patrol
Retirement System are legally separate organizations that provide services entirely, or almost entirely, to the
State or otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, benefit the State. Therefore, the State reports these
organizations’ balances and transactions as though they were part of the primary government using the blending
method.

The Ohio Building Authority ceased operations as of December 31, 2011. Pursuant to Amended Substitute
House Bill No. 153 of the 129" General Assembly, effective January 1, 2012, the Treasurer of the State of Ohio
supersedes and replaces the Authority in all matters relating to the issuance of obligations for the financing of
capital facilities for housing branches and agencies of State government. Further, the Treasurer succeeds to all of
the duties, powers, obligations and functions of the Authority relating to bonds previously issued by the Authority.
The legislation additionally provides that effective January 1, 2012, the building and facility operations and
management functions of the Authority are transferred to the Ohio Department of Administrative Services.

2. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units’ columns in the basic financial statements include the financial data of another 28
organizations. The separate discrete column labeled, “Component Units,” emphasizes these organizations’
separateness from the State’s primary government. Officials of the primary government appoint a voting majority
of each organization’s governing board.

The primary government has the ability to impose its will on the following organizations by modifying or approving
their respective budgets or through policy modification authority.

School Facilities Commission

Cultural Facilities Commission

eTech Ohio Commission

Ohio Air Quality Development Authority
Ohio Capital Fund
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The following organizations impose or potentially impose financial burdens on the primary government.

Ohio Water Development Authority
Ohio State University

University of Cincinnati

Ohio University

Miami University

University of Akron

Bowling Green State University
Kent State University

University of Toledo

Cleveland State University
Youngstown State University
Wright State University

Shawnee State University

Central State University

Terra State Community College
Columbus State Community College
Clark State Community College
Edison State Community College
Southern State Community College
Washington State Community College
Cincinnati State Community College
Northwest State Community College
Owens State Community College

The School Facilities Commission, Cultural Facilities Commission, and eTech Ohio Commission, which are
governmental component units, do not issue separately audited financial reports.

Information on how to obtain financial statements for the State’s component units that do issue their own
separately audited financial reports is available from the Ohio Office of Budget and Management.

3. Joint Ventures and Related Organizations

As discussed in more detail in NOTE 18, the State participates in several joint ventures and has related
organizations. The State does not include the financial activities of these organizations in its financial statements,
in conformity with GASB 14.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements — The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities display information
about the primary government (the State) and its component units. These statements include the financial
activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities.

Fiduciary funds of the primary government and component units that are fiduciary in nature are reported only in
the statements of fiduciary net assets and changes in fiduciary net assets.

For the government-wide financial statements, eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
State. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-
exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole, or in part, by fees charged to external
parties for goods or services.

The Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The State presents the statement in a format that
displays assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources equal net
assets. The net assets section is displayed in three components:
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e The Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt component consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. The portion of debt attributable to significant
unspent related debt proceeds at year-end is not included in the calculation of this net assets component.

e The Restricted Net Assets component represents net assets with constraints placed on their use that are
either 1.) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments
or 2.) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. For component units with
permanent endowments, restricted net assets are displayed in two additional components — nonexpendable
and expendable. Nonexpendable net assets are those that are required to be retained in perpetuity.

e The Unrestricted Net Assets component consists of net assets that do not meet the definition of the preceding
two components.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the State’'s governmental activities and for the different business-type activities of the State. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular program or function. Centralized expenses have been included in direct expenses.
Indirect expenses have not been allocated to the programs or functions reported in the Statement of Activities.

Program revenues include licenses, permits and other fees, fines, forfeitures, charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs, and grants, contributions, and investment earnings that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all tax, tobacco settlement, escheat property revenues, unrestricted investment
income, and state assistance, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the State’s funds, including
the fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and proprietary funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Governmental fund types include the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds. The
proprietary funds consist of enterprise funds. Fiduciary fund types include pension trust, private-purpose trust,
investment trust, and agency funds.

Operating revenues for the State’s proprietary funds mainly consist of charges for the sales and services and
premium and assessment income since these revenues result from exchange transactions associated with the
principal activity of the respective enterprise fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Revenue from the federal government for the underfunded regular and
extended unemployment benefits is also reported as operating revenues for the Unemployment Compensation
Fund, since this source provides significant funding for the payment of unemployment benefits — the fund’s
principal activity. Investment income for the Tuition Trust Authority Fund is also reported as operating revenue,
since this source provides significant funding for the payment of tuition benefits. Nonoperating revenues for the
proprietary funds result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities; nonoperating revenues are primarily
comprised of investment income and federal operating grants.

Proprietary fund operating expenses principally consist of expenses for the cost of sales and services,
administration, bonuses and commissions, prizes, benefits and claims, and depreciation. Nonoperating expenses
principally consist of interest expense on debt and the amortization of discount on deferred lottery prize liabilities,
which is reported under “Other” nonoperating expenses.
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The State reports the following major governmental funds:

General — The General Fund, the State’s primary operating fund, accounts for resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Job, Family and Other Human Services Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for public assistance
programs primarily administered by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services, which provides financial
assistance, services, and job training to those individuals and families who do not have sufficient resources to
meet their basic needs. The primary sources of revenue for this fund are licenses, permits and fees and the
federal government.

Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for
the payment of principal and interest on the revenue bonds issued to fund long-lived capital projects at State-
supported institutions of higher education and to pay the State’s share of the cost of rebuilding elementary and
secondary school facilities across the State.

The State reports the following major proprietary funds:

Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for the operations of the Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation and the Industrial Commission of Ohio, which provide workers’ compensation insurance services.

Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for the State’s lottery operations.

Unemployment Compensation Enterprise Fund — This fund, which is administered by the Ohio Department of
Job and Family Services, accounts for unemployment compensation benefit claims.

The State reports the following fiduciary fund types:

Pension Trust Fund — The State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund accounts for resources
that are required to be held in trust for members and beneficiaries of the defined benefit plan. The financial
statements for the State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund are presented for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2011.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund — The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for trust arrangements under which
principal and income benefit participants in the Variable College Savings Plan, which is administered by the
Tuition Trust Authority.

Investment Trust Fund — The STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund accounts for the state-sponsored external
investment pool, which the Treasurer of State administers for local government participants.

Agency Funds — These funds account for the receipt, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary
resources held on behalf of individuals, private organizations, and other governments.

The State reports the following major discretely presented component unit funds:

The School Facilities Commission fund accounts for grants that provide assistance to local school districts for the
construction of school buildings.

The Ohio Water Development Authority, Ohio State University, and University of Cincinnati funds are business-
type activities that use proprietary fund reporting. The financial statements for the Ohio Water Development
Authority, which provides financial assistance to local governments for the construction of wastewater and
sewage facilities, are prese